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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of S Chand & Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited)
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying siandalone Ind AS financial statements of § Chand and Company Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters staied in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
inchuding the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
agsets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irvegularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We
conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or ciror. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design andit
procedures that are appropriate I the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial staternents. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the standalone Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2018, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
n equity for the year ended on that date.

S.&. Batliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership wilh LLP identity No. AAB-4295
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Tnd AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2018, and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2018, from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operaiing effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of owr information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its standalone
financial statement, Refer 49 note to the financial statement;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term coniracts incloding derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

iii. 'Therc were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number:
A

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Nunber: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date; 30 May 2018
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Re: S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited) (‘the Company’)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inchuding quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies
were identified on such verification.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable propertics,
included i property, plant and equipment/fixed assets of the Company and accordingly the requirements
under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(it) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals duzing the year.
Discrepancies noted on physical verification of inventories were not material and have been properly dealt
with in the books of accounts.

{iii) (2} The Company has granted foan to five companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the terms and conditions of the loan are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(b) Inrespect of loan granted to Company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013, repayment of the principal amount and receipt of interest is as stipulated.

(¢) There are no amounis of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are outstanding for more than ninety days.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to entities in which directors are interested and in
respect of loans and advances given, investments made and guarantees given have been complied with by
the Company.

) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public,

(i) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance
of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

(viiy(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales-fax, service tax/goods and service tax, value
added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it, though there has been a slight delay in
few cases of income tax. The provisions relating duty of excise duty are not applicabie to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, o undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income-tax, provident fund, employees® state insurance, sales—tax, service tax/goods and service tax, value
added tax, cess and other undisputed statutory dues were outstanding, at the period end, for 2 period of
more than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not
applicable to the Company.

{¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues ouistanding of income-tax on account of any dispute
are as follows:




S.

o M

BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

(viti)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Nature of Period to which Forum wh
Name of the Statute Amount (Rs.) the amount . . ere
dues dispute is pending
relates

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 30,297,622 | AY 2004-05 Delhi High Court
Income Tax Act, 1961 Tncome tax 4,459,354 | AY 2005-06 Delhi High Court
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 1,456,060 | A.Y 2006-07 Delhi High Court
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 3,424,588 | A.Y 2007-08 Delhi High Court
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 15,198,906 | AY 2007-08 ITAT
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 4,163,128 | AY 2008-09 Delhi High Court
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 5,338,597 1 AY 2009-10 Dclhi High Court
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 6,628,820 | AY 2010-11 ITAT
Income Tax Act 1961 Income tax 8,184,960 | AY 2011-12 ITAT
Income Tax Act 1961 Income tax 9,997,850 | AY 2012-13 ITAT
Income Tax Act 1961 Income tax 3,339,530 | AY 2013-14 CIT (A)
Income Tax Act 1961 Income tax 3,093,320 | AY 2014-15 CIT (A)
Income Tax Act 1961 Income Tax 4,443,190 1 AY 2015-16 CIT (A)

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues lo a bank and financial institution. The Company does not have any
dues to in respect of debenture holders or government,

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
utitized the monies raised by way of initial public offer and term loans for the purposes for which they
were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the frue and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no frand on or by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial renmneration has
been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,
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(xi)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi}

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given by the management, the Company is
not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the refated
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
converiible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upor.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company hag not entered into

any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For 8. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership No.: 394941

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2018
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF S Chand & Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and
Company Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the infernal financial controls over financial reporting of S Chand & Company Limited (“the
Company™) as of 31 March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
onthe internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's infernal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial conirols over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
conirols operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk thata material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivencss
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company,
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Tnherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of infernal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management ovetride of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur
and not be detected. Also, projections-of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. :

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls aver financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting critetia established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLFP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94541

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2018



S Chand and Company Limited
Balance sheet as af 31 March 2018
CIN: L22219DL1970PLC005400

{T in millions}

Notes As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 91,27 111.7¢ 140,32
Intangible assets 4 167.63 145,73 115.94
Capital work-in-progress 047 - 0.10
Financial assets
- Investments 5A 6,066.96 4,704.06 3,531.57
- Loans 5T 65231 153.07 18.36
- Other financial assets 5E 8.58 4,76 4.78
Otlier non-cusrent assels 7 40.91 27.44 59.28
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 51.00 69.11 652.26
Total non-current assets 7,079,131 5,215,87 3,932.61
Current assels
Fventories 6 526.00 577.09 620.5%
Financial assets
- Investiments 5B 176,42 1.94 122.01
- Loans 5F 79.93 26.68 E62.11
- Trade receivahles 5C 3,026.87 2,128.58 1,781.33
- Cash and cash equivalents 5D 389.30 143,85 93,76
- Other finaucial assets SE 8.95 4.61 7.21
Other current assets 7 63.2§ £35.60 37.35
Total current assets 4,270.68 3,017.75 2,824.36
Total assets 11,349.81 $,233.62 6,756,97
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 9 174.88 149.22 2.02
Other equity
- Retained earmings 10 1,810.60 1,353.41 1,093.05
- Other reserves 10 6,614.76 3,517.34 3,647.01
Totzl equity 8,600.24 5,019.97 4,742.08
Noni-carrent liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Boowings 12a 4.86 8.05 308.36
Net employee defined benefit liabilities 16 8.50 B.46 7.68
Other son-current Liabilities 15 6.04 4.92 2.56
Total non-current liabilities 19.80 21,43 318.60
Current Habilities
Financial liabilities
- Bomowings 12B 507.62 798.83 496.82
- Trade payables 13 1,303.00 900.56 1,073.37
- Qther financiai liabilities 14 685.11 1,322,31 25.69
Other current labilitics 15 100.81 60.29 5122
Other provisions 17 133.23 110.23 49.19
Total current liabilities 2,729.77 3,152,22 1,696.29
Total equity and liabilities 11,349.81 8,233,62 6,756,97
Summary of significant accounting policies i

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our teport of even date

For 8., Batlibot & Associates LLP

ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049%W / E300004

Chartel’ed Accountants

My«

e
pel‘ Yogesh Midha
Pariner
Membership No.: 94941

Place : New Delhi
Date : 30 May 2018

r(in anshu Gupta
i Director
DIN 054015

y e ;;4 e‘(&.uw?

/ Saurabh TG
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
§ Chand and Coripany Limited

Ly, A Jﬁmp

Dinesh Kumar Thanjhouwala

Director

DIN: 00232988

SV

Jagdeep Singh
Company Secretary

18



S Chand and Company Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2018
CIN: L22219DL1970PLCOBS400

(X in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

N
otes 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
I Revenue from opesations 18 3,439.90 2,926.02
11 Other income 19 270.23 93.49
I Tofat Income (T) 3,710.13 3,019.51
IV Expenses
Cost of published goods/material consumed 20 1,251.01 1,013.41
Purchase of traded poods 2t 16.03 52.52
(Increase)decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 22 66.71 23.28
Publication expense 23 380.37 317,00
Selling and distribution expense 24 233.57 206.39
Employee benefits expense 25 543.83 481,27
Finance costs 28 97.22 149.95
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 33.50 65.13
Other expenscs 27 29819 273.74
‘Total expenses (M) 2,92043 2,581.7%
V¥V Profit before tax 789.70 437.72
¥I Tax expense: :
Curreni fax 29 268,02 17100
Inceme tax adjustment related to earlier years {2.93) 1.50
Deferred tax (credi)/ charge 17.02 (6.99)
Total tax expense 282.11 165.51
Vil Profit for the year (V-VI) 507.59 272.21
VIII Other Comprehensive Income a0
« Ifems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement (gains)/losses on defined benefit plans (3.10) (0.42)
Income tax effect 1.07 0.15
X1 Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII + VIII) 509.62 272,48
{Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)
X1} Earnings per equity share;
(1) Basic 14,76 9.12
{2) Diluted 14.72 9.10
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Bnancial statements.
As per our report of even date

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No, 101049% / E300004
Charterced Accountants

’Eiy At

per Yogesh Midha
Parmer
Membership No.; 94941

Place : New Delhi
Date : 30 May 2018

i
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For and on hehalf 0rf,ﬂ{€:i30ard of Directors of

- DIN: 9‘0540 15

ot _J/

Saurabh Miftal
Chief Financial Officer

ﬁgny Limited
-

ey A
/i'%(‘“'{ ivf ' i\uf\gﬂ

DMKumar Jhunjhnuwala

Director

DIN: 00282988 .

AT
i f J

Jagdeep Singh

Company Secretary



$ Chand and Company Limited
Cash Nlow statement for the year ended 31 Mareh 2018
CIN: L12219DLI9TOPLCO05400

T In mililons)

Notes Asat Asat

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
A, Cash flow from eperating activities
FProlit before tax 78970 43172
Adjustment to reconclle profit before tax to net cash flews
Depreciation ard ainortization expense 33.50 65.13
(Profit)loss on sale of fixed assels (net) 204 {1.66}
Interest income (195.43) (78.25)
Interest income on secrities mearsured al amortised cost (6.34) (2.24y
Dividend incoms on curmens investmenls (0.00) 0.02}
Reversal of provisien for diminution in valoe of investments {41.00) {0.39)
Fair vatue gain on financial instruzents at fair value through profil or kss {21.57) {0.407)
Nel gain ox sale of current investments - {5.75)
Provision for doublful receivables 12.23 2500
Employee stock option expease .48 £5.09
Inlgest axpense 88.64 136.16
Operating profit before worklng capital changes £69.25 590.72
Moverment in working capilal:
Decrease/(increase) in inventorics 5109 43.50
fncecase in frade receivables (910.52) {39225
tncrease in foans and advances 45.66 {9L.90)
Increase inother financial assets (.61} 3.26
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 047 0.73
Decrease in trade payables 402.44 (172.82)
Increase/{decrease} in current Habilities 30.35 30.46
Cash generated from operations 231,13 k)
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) (230.92) (94.77)
Net cash fromt operating aetivities (A) 50.21 {63.02)
B. Cash [lows from investing aclivilles
Purchase of fixed assets including capital advances, capital areditors and capilal work-in-progress (89.12) {66.68)
Purchase of non-current investiments {695.41) {L,179.05)
Purchase of current imvestmenis 107,17y -
Proceeds front sale of current investments - 126.29
Procesds from sale of fixed assels 2588 1157
Dividend received 0.00 002
Interest received 19487 77.01
Loans le related party (5:%.49) 1.31
Net cash used In knvesting activitles {B) {1,189.44) {1,417.91)
C, Cash {lows From lnancing activitics
Procesds from issuance of squity share including securities premium (net of transaction cost) 3,318.05 -
Transaciion cost on issue of equity share (207.19) -
Dividend paid on equity shares (43.56) {10.08)
Tax on equity dividend paid (8.87) (2.05)
Interest paid on Borrowings (82.09) (136.05)
Repayment of fong fam bormowings (1,200.44) 97119
Procead from borrowings (29170 302,01
Net cash used §n financing activities ) 1,384.68 1,131.02
Netincrease In cash and cash equlvatents {(A+DB4HC) 245,45 50.09
Effects of exchiange differences on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currency - -
Cash and cash equivalents at tis: beginning of the year 143.85 53.16
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the year 330.30 143.55
Componenss of ¢ash aod cash equiveleats
Cash on hand 0.9} 3.50
Cheques on hand 174.22
Balances wilh banks:
- on curzent accouals 7139 134.95
- deposits with original malurity of less than three months 140.76 5.40
“Totat cash and cash equivaients (note 18) 389.30 141.85

e

{This space huas been lefi inventionaiiy}




5 Chand and Company Elmited
Cash flow statemyent for the year ended 31 Mareh 2018
CIN: L222{9DL1970PLCODS400

(T in milllgns)
Non-cash investiog aod firancing transaction .
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment by means of a finance fease 1270 1942
Asat Cnsh As at
Pastical
artiealars 31 March 2017 faws Non csh changes 3t March 3018
Long term bomowings (including curzent maturity) 1,110.34 (LG4 9.90
Shorl 1am bormowings 79883 (291.22), - 502.61
2,109.17 (1,591.65); - 517.5%
Summary of sipnificact accounting policies 2.1

The accormpanying notes are an integral part of the financial slatements.
As per our report of even dale:
For 8.R. Datitbol & Assoclntes LLP

TICAT Firm Reglstration Number: 161049W/E300004
Chartered Aecountanis

prr Yogesh Midha
Partaer
Membership No. 94941

Place: New Delhi
Dale: 30 May 2018
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" Saursbh Mittat
Chelf Financial Officer

et S

Dindsh Kumar Jtnofhnowala
Director
DIN; 00282988 .,

5\53‘\"‘ )
Jagdeep Shugh
Company Secretary



S Chand and Company Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: 1.22219DL13710PLCO05400

A, Eqguity share capital:

Issued, subseribed and Tully paid up

No. of shares T in millions

As at 1 April 2016 201,652 2,02
Issued during the peciod — Share split 201,652 ) -

Issued during the period — Bonus issue 29,441,192 147.20
As at 31 March 2017 29,844,496 149,22
Tssued during the year - IPO 4,850,746 2426
Issued during the year - ESOPs 280,045 1,49
As at March 31, 2018 ' 34,975,287 174.88

B. Other equity
(¥ in millions)

Reserve & Surplus
Retained earnings I Capital reserve Secu’:?;fl:[ci:nl"m ESOP outstandings Votal
As at Aprif 1, 2016 1,093.05 0.51 3,638.93 7.57 4,740,06
Profit for the year 27221 - - 72,21
Other comprehensive income for the year 6.27 - - 0.27
Tatal Comprehensive ixcome for tlte year 272.48 - - - 272.48
Share based payments - - - 17.53 17.53
Issue of share capital - - (147.20) - {147.20)
Interim equity dividend (10.07) - - - (10.07)
Dividend distribution tax (2.05) - - - (2.05)
As at 31 Mareh 2017 1,353.41 0,51 3491,73 25.10 4,870.75
Profit for the year 507.59 - - - 507.5%
Other comprehensive inconse for the year 2.03 - - - 2.03
Total Comprehensive Inconte for the year 509.62 - - - 509.62
Share based payments - - - 12.22 12,22
Issue of share capital - - 3,292.39 - 3,292.39
Exercise of share options - - 2042 (29.42) -
Transgotion costs - - (207.19) . (207.19)
Interim equity dividend (43.56) - - - {43.56)
Dividend distribution tax 8.87) - - - (8.8T)
As at 31 March 2018 1,810.60 0.51 6,606.35 7.%0 8,425.36
Sumnary of significant accounting poticies 2,1

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statenents.
As per our report of even date

For 8.R, Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W / E300004
Chartered Accountants

B

per Yogesh Midha
Partner

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

§ Chand and Coinpsiny Limited .
# ’L? /)
\-//'wﬁ / by

| i / .
Dinesth Kumar Jhunjhnuwala

imanshn Gupta

" Director Director
Membership No.: 94941 DIN: 0054015 DIN: 0%2 988
B il ?S * ?«\‘
Place : New Delhi Japgdeep Singh
Date: 30 May 2018 : / Cheif Financial Officer Company Secretary
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S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited)
Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate information

3 Chand and Company Limited (‘the Company’) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 applicable in India. The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f.
8" September 2016 and consequently the name of the Company has changed from S Chand and Company Private Limited
to S Chand and Company Limited, Its shares are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in India. The registered office
of the Company is located at 7361, Ram Nagar, Qutab Road, New Delhi - 110055. These are unconsolidated financial
statements and, accordingly, these Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial statements incorporate amounts and
disclosures related to the Company only.

The Company is principally engaged in publishing of educational books with products ranging from school books, higher
academic books, competition and reference books, technical and professional books and children Books.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Company have been preparéd in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the
Companies {Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP).

For all periods up te and including the year ended March 31 2017, the Company prepared its unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are the first the
Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Reconciliation and description of transition to Ind AS has been
summarised in Note 51.

The unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value.

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instraments).
i) Equity settled employee share-based payment plan

The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Millions (INR),
except when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-cwrrent classification. An asset as
current when it is:

i.  Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
ii.  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
fii.  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv.  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period i

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited)
Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Tudian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

A liability is current when:

I. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
fi. Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading
fii. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional crency. Functional
currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency
in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign cuirencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date

the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of |
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of profit or
loss.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments and equity settled employee share based payment plan at fair value
at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a-liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the

transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
it.  inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the-~
e

. o o -
asset in its highest and best use. S5 Ay, .
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S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited)
Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. '

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant fo the fair value
measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
 whether fransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {(based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria inchude market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management anatyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company’s management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. '

The Company’s management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and Hability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and Liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note swmimarises accowting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.
i Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 32)
il. Quanfitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 39)
iii. Investment in unquoted equity shares (Note 5A and 5B)
iv. Financial instruments (including those carried at amertised cost) (Note 39)
v. Equity Settled employee share based payment plan (Note 36)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government, The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its
revenue arrangements since It Is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has pricing latitude, and is also
exposed to inventory and credit risks. g
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S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly 8 Chand and Company Private Limited)
Notes to the unconselidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
{Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax cotlected on value
added to the commeodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
been transferred i.e. at the time of handing over goods to the camrier for transportation. Reveme from the sale of goods
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of sales returns, turnover discounts and cash
discounts.

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates. The provision for turnover
discount and cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.

Inferest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-hearing financial assets, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income Is included in other income in the statement
of profit or loss.

Dividends
Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

Rental iricome :
Rental Income arising from operating leases of computers is accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit and loss due to its operating natuore.

income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and [{abilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income ax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other '
comprehensive income or In equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retwrns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax .
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
o When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction

that is not a business combination and, at the time of the tran,
profit or loss

tion, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable




S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited)
Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductibie temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

©  When the deferred tax assei relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates , deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foresesable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to atlow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the Hability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred fax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net
of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment Josses, if any. The Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value for all its item of property, plant and equipment as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed
cost at the transition date, viz, April 01, 2016.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such patts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation
Till March 31, 2017, depreciation on property, plant and equipment was being provided on written down value method.
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S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited)
Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful

economic lives of the asset.

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by Useful fife as per Schedule 1T
management
Plant and equipment 15 -25 vears 15 years
Office Equipment 5 years 5 years
Furniture & fixture 10 years 10 years
Vehicle 10 years 8 years
Others — Computer 6 years 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or unexpired period of lease whichever is less,

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles and computers over estimated useful lives which are different from useful life
prescribed in Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are
realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. :

Intangible assets

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), intangible assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value
for all its item of intangible assets as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, viz,
April 01, 2016. '

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply Ind AS
accounting for business combinations prospectively from April 01, 2016, As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to
business combinations entered into before that date, including goodwill, have been carried forward with no adjustments.
(Refer Note 4),

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair vahue as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incwrred. -

Amortisation and useful lives
The useful lives of intangible assets are assesscd as either finite or indefinite.




S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited)
Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be fmpaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the

' expected usefu] life or the expected pattern of conswmption of future economic benefits embodied i the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates, The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the staterent of profit or loss
in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annuaily, either mdividually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an
intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

» The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale

s Tts intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

o Fow the asset will generate future economic benefits

e The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

o The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the asset
to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset
begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected
future benefit. '

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method used Internally
generated or
acquired
Computer software Findte (5 -10 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives
Goodwill on business | Idefinite No amortization Acquired
combination _
Copyrights Finite (10 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acguired
over the period of copyright
Content development Fite (10 seasons) Amortized on straight line basis | Internally generated
over the period of content
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S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand and Company Private Limited)
Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. An operating lease is a
lease other than a finance lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating Leases are included in Fixed Assets. Rental income from
operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the fease term on the same bases as rental income.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

« Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

» Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined
on first in, first out basis.

+ Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
Jocation and condition. Cost is determined on First In First Out (FIFO) basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
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2,12  TImpairment of non—financial assets

2.13

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be tmpaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating wnit’s (CGU}) fair
value less costs of disposal and its valne in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value Jess costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generalty cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in fitture periods.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any confract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
iostrument of another entity. S
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Financial assets

Initial recognifion and measurement '

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) arc recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits fo purchase or
sell the asset

Subsequent measiurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Financial assets at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assety at amortised cost

A ‘Financial instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Ameortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCT

A debt instruments is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

o The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

e The assel’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCY is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FV'TOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.,

Equity instruments at FYTOCI

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity insiruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. Tor all other equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,

excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL There is no recycling of the amounts from OC) to P&L, even on sale
of invesiment. However, the company may transfer the curulative gain or loss within equity. / :
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Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Financial assets at FVIPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FYTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch”).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily

derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s unconsolidated balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered info a pass-through
arrangemment, it evaluates if and to what extent if has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to
repay. .

Impairment of financial assets
Tn accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) maodel for measurement and
recognition of impairment less on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., Ioans debt securities, deposits,
frade receivables and bank balance

o Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢ [.ease receivables under Ind-AS 17,

o Confract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 18.

¢ I.oan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

¢ Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

° Trade receivables, and
° All lease receivables resulting from fransactions within the scope of Ind AS 17.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each repm‘tﬂl a,glate right from its initial recognition. /

/z,
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant mcrease in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reveris to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and ali the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All confractual ferms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impaitment loss allowance on portfolio of
its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed defanlt
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company has estimated
provision of 4.89% is required to be made on outstanding receivables at the reporting date:

Age bracket Not Due 0-270 Days | 271-365 Days | 365-730 Days | More than 730 Days
Credit loss rate 0.04% 0.58% 26.08% 100.00% 160.06%

ECL impaijrment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:-

a)  For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
gross carrying amount.

b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as
a liability,

¢)  Debt instruments measured at FYTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment
amount’ in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. /
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liahilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and Joans and borrowings including bank
overdrafis.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Habilities «f fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon inifial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gainsfloss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such lability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most refevant io the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the Habilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a lability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of In'd-AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recogrition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss
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Re-classification of Financial Assets _

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets
which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected io be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines
change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations, Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of Financial Tostruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reporied in the unconsolidated balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, fo realise the assets and settle the Habilities simultaneously.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident
fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the coniribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme
is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in nef interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods,

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtaflment, and
o The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cosis

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the unconsolidated statement of

profit and loss; '

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtaiiments and non-routine
seftlements; and

e Net interest expense or income.
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Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit,
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

2.15  Share based payments

2.16

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share based payments,
whereby employer render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model. :

_That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and foss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits
expenss.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value
of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead o an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the fransactions are treated as
vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty,
any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings
per share.

Provisions

General .

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to _
be reimbursed, the reiinbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain,~
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the stg;ementigi profit or loss net of any reimbursement,

e b
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If the effect of the time value of money is matexial, provisions are discounted nsing a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the Lability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic Farnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to equity helders of the
Company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) and the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution fo equity holders of the Company .

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-ineasurement
recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the
requirement of Schedule I, unless otherwise stated.

Standards issued but not yet effective
a. Ind AS 115 — Revenue from contracts with customers

Ind AS 115 was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenue standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. Either a full retrospective application or a
modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. The Company will
adopt the new standard on the required effective date using the modified retrospective method. The Company has
established an implementation team to implement Ind AS 115 related to the recognition of revenue from coniracts with
customers and it continues to evaluate the changes to accounting system and processes, and additional disclosure
requirements that may be necessary. A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 115 on the financiai
statements will only be possible once the implementation‘.pgc{j%ﬁi}:@q&been completed.

&
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b. Amendments to Ind 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure
requirements in Ind AS 112

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in Ind AS 112, other than those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply
fo an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of ifs interest in a joint venture or an
associate) that is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

¢. Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Curren'c-:y Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on whick an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, then the entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis, Alternatively, an entity may apply these
requirements prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or afier:

(i) The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix, or

(ii) The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. However, since the Company’s current
practice is in line with the Interpretation, the Company does not expect any effect on its financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations

The Company applied for the first time certain amendments to the standards, which are effective for anmual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2017. The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:

Amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). The
Company has provided the information for both the current and the comparative period in Cash Flow Statement.

Amendments to Ind AS 102 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments to Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment addresses three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on
the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and accounting where a modification to the
terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settle.
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3, Property, plant and equipment

(% In millions)
Plant & equipment  Office equipment Furniture & Vehlcles Leasshold Computers Total
fixtures improvement
Cost*
Asat | April 2016 24.30 11,81 17.98 41.75 7.81 3617 140.32
Additions 0.41 1,86 0.46 19.42 0.76 1,02 239
Drisposals - (0.02) - (5.66) - £1.97) (11.65)
As at 31 March 2017 25.2F i3.65% 18.44 51.51 8.57 3522 152,60
Additions 15 192 0.37 12.70 2.66 1.85 2215
Disposals {13.55) (0.09) (0.03) (4.35) - {22.95) (43.31
Asat 31 March 2018 1341 15.48 19.28 59.86 £1.23 14.12 13338
Accumulated depreciation
Asgat] April 2016 - - - - - - .
Charge for the year 327 5.34 4.55 13.36 .47 14.15 43.04
Disposals - - - (1.43) - {0.74) (2.14)
As al 31 March 2017 3.27 534 4.95 1243 147 13.44 40,90
Charge for the year 0.84 . 2.05 2,60 470 2.02 304 14.65
Disposals (L1 {0.05) w.e1) (1.43y - {10.84) (13.44)
As 6t 31 March 2618 3.00 7.34 6,94 15.70 .49 5.64 42.11
Net block
Asat ] Apsil 2016 24,80 11.81 17.98 41,75 7.81 36.17 140,32
Asat 31 March 2017 21,94 831 13.49 39.08 7.10 21.78 111,70
Asat 31 March 2018 .41 8.14 12.34 44,16 FAT] 848 91.27
*Cost as at | April 2016 is calculsted as shown below:
Plant & equipment  Office equipment Fu]l{nlture & Vehlcles Leasehold Computers Tolal
xtures improvement
Gross Hlack 58.7% 42.21 54.25 100.85 11.70 132,58 460.33
Accumulated depreciation {33.99) (30.40) {36.27) (59.10) {3.39) (95.41) (260.06)
Deemed cost as at 1 April 2016 24.80 11.81 17.98 41,75 7.8t 36,17 140.32
4. Intanplble assets
& in mllkions)
Goodwitl Computer software Copy-right Content Totat
developnient
Cast**
Asatl April 2016 2383 44.95 20.74 26.42 115.94
Purchase . - 597 - 46,18 52,15
Disposals - (0.34) - - (0.34)
As at 31 March 2017 23.83 50.58 20.74 72,60 167.75
Purchase - 2.2% 4.16 14.30 40.7%
Disposals - - - - -
As at 31 March 2018 23.83 52.87 24.90 106.90 208.50
Accumutated depreclation
Asat 1 April 2016 - - - - -
Amonlization for the year - 15,82 161 2,66 2209
Disposals - 10,073 - - (0.07)
Asat 31 March 2017 - 15.35 3.61 2.66 22.02
Amortization for the year - .18 3.82 7.85 18.85
Disposals - - - - -
As at 31 March 2018 - 22,93 7.43 10.51 40.87
Net htack
As at 1 April 2016 . 13.83 44.95 20.74 26,42 115,94
As at 31 March 2017 23.83 34.83 1713 $9.94 145,71
Asat 31 March 2018 23.83 2994 17.47 56,39 167.63
**Cost us at 1 April 2016 s cslculated as shown below:
Confent
Goodwill Computer soflware Copy-right ' Total
Gross block 74.8% 58.07 287N 2036 184.03
A lated depreciation . {51.00) (13.12) (0.97) (2.94) (68.09)
Deemed Cost asat 1 Aprll 2016 23.33 44,95 20.74 2642 115.94

Nate: Since the company has changed its estimate of deprecialion on property, plant and equipment from Financial year 2017-18, impact of change in estimate is given below:

FParticulavs {3 in milllons)

Depreciation as per written down value method klH
Depreciation as per straight line method 15
Profit for current year Increased by 15

**The carrying value of vehicies held under finance Jeases contracts at 31 March 2018 was £ 21,54 millions 31 March 2017: T 11.97 millions and | April 2016: T 9.55 millions), Additions during the year
inchude 3 10.92 millions (31 March 2017: 2 6.14 miilions} under finance leascs contracts, Leased assels are pledged as securily for the related finance leases.

Impgirment testlag of goodwill
The Company performs test for geodwill impairment at least annually on March 31, or if indicators of impafrement arise, such as e effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors
or on vecuttence of an event or change in circumstances thal would mors likely than not reduce the Fair value below its camying amount. When determining the fair value, we utilize vatrious assumplions, -

including operating results, business plans and projeciions of future cash flaws. Any adverse changes in key assumptions about our businesses and their prospects or an adverse change in market conditicns
may cause a change in the estimation of fir valuo and covld result in an impairment charge.

/
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5, Financial assets

5A. Noa-current investmenis

{2 ir mililons)

Asat As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Investments valued at cost
Investment in unquoted equity shares
Investment in substdiaries
149 (31 March 2017: 149 and 1 April 2016: 149} shares of T 1,000 each fully paid up in M/s 6229 60.79 60.79
Btackie & Son (Caleutta} Private Limlted
12,000 (31 March 2017; 12,000 and | April 2016: 12,000) shares of T 10 each fully paid up in M/s 17.04 15.60 1560
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited
26,584,168 (31 March 2017: 26,584,168 and 1 April 2016: 26,584,168) shares of Z 10 each fully 267,08 266.97 266.3¢
paid up in M/s Safad Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited
106 (31 March 2017: 106 and 1 Aprit 2016: 106} shares of T 1,000 each fully paid up in M's 116,05 116.05 116.05
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited
39,339 (31 March 2017: 39,339 and { April 2016: 39,339) shares of 2 t00 each fully paid up in 1,507.68 £,504.44 1,503.18
M/s Vikas Publishing House Private Limited -
15,600 (31 March 2017; 15,600 and | Apsil 2016: 135,600) shares of T 10 each fully paid up in M/s 905,70 201.50 901,00
New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
17,686,750 (31 March 2017: 17,686,750 and 1 April 2016: 17,686,750) shares of T 10 each fully 142,51 142,51 142.51
paid up in Mfs DS Digital Private Limited
64,548 (31 March 2017: 64,548 and 1 April 2016: Nit) shares of ¥ 100 each fully paid up in M/s 1,657.04 1,000.04 -
Chhaya Prakashani Private Timited (*)
4,675.39 4,007.90 3,005.43
Investment fn associate
30 (31 March 2017: 50 and 1 April 2016: [) share of T 10 each fully paid up in M/s Smartivity 0.52 0.52 0.00
Labs Private Limited
0.52 52 0.00
Investment in unquoted preference shares
Investruent in subsidiaries
16,000,000 (31 March 2017: 16,000,060 and 1 April 2016: Nit) shares of & 10 each fully paid up 160.00 160.00 -
in M/s DS Digital Private Limited
1,600 {31 March 2017: 1,600 and 1 April 2016: 1,600) shares of T 37.14 each fully paid up in M/s - - -
Essar Gujrat Limited
4,200 (31 March 2017: 4,200 and 1 April 2016: 4,200) 6% shares of ¥ 10 each Rully paid up in - - -
M/s Zee Enterlainment Enferprises Limited (Bonus shares)
160,00 160.00 -
Investment in associate
5,264 (31 March 2017: 5,064 and 1 April 2016: 4,264) 0.001% compulserily converible 18.13 15.04 6.14
cumulative shares of T 10 each fully paid up in M/s Smartivity Labs Private Limited
18.13 15.64 6.14
Investiment in debentures
Investment in subsidiarvies
5,200 (31 March 2017: 5,200 and 1 April 2016: 5,200) 10.75% aptionally convertible redeemable . 52000 520.00 520,00
of T 100,000 each fully paid up in New Saraswati House (india) Private Limited
6,916 (31 March 2637; Mil and 1 Aprl 2016: Nil) 2% optionally convertible redeemable of % 652,92 - -
100,000 eack fully paid wp in Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited*
1,212.92 520.60 520.00
Iuvestments at fair value through profit and loss
Investment In debentures
Investment in others
£00 (31 March 2017: 100 and | April 2016; 100) redeernable non-convertible of 2 60 each fully - - -
paid up in Motor and General Finance Limited
Total 6,066.96 4,704.06 3,531.57
Agpregate value of unquoted investments 6,066.96 4,704.06 3,531.57
Aggregate value of impaitment in value of invesiments 0.07 0.07 0,07

Note: Investmert in Subsidiaries include deemed investments of 2 10.49 millions (31 March 2017: X 2.43 mitlions 1 April 2016: T 1,17 millions) due ta ESOP granted to
employees of subsidiary companies and corporate guarantes given by Holding Company on behalf of subsidiary companies.

_*Hivestment in Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited includes T 657 millions as deemed investment for 38,554 shares presentty held by minority shareholders (reler note 14B)
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sB,

5C.

Current investments

(% in ntHions)
Asat Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Investment at fair vahre through profit and loss
Investment in equity shares (anguoted)
13,880 (31 March 2017: 15,880 and 1 April 2016; 15,380) shares of T 10 each fully paid up in - - -
M/s Sisterna Shyam Teleservices Limited
1,000 (31 March 2017: 1,000 and 1 April 2016: 1,000) shares of ¥ 0 each filly paid up in Mfs - - -
Bharat Glass Tubes Limited
Investment valued at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in equity instruiments (quoted)
1,000 (31 March 2017: 1,000 and 1 April 2016: 1,060) shares of ¥ 10 each filly paid up in Mfs 0.14 0.10 0.69
Freshiop Fruits Limited
42,564 (31 March 2017; 42,564 and 1 April 2016: 42,56+4) shares of 2 19 each fully paid up ia 0.56 0.72 0.46
M/s Mahaan Foods Limited
10,457 (31 March 2017: 10,457 and 1 April 2016: 10,457) shares of T 1 each fully paid ug in 0.01 0.61 006!
M/s Pentamedia Graphics Limited
2,000 (31 March 2017: 2,000 and | April 2016: 2,000} shares of 10 each fully paid up in M/s 0,01 0.02 0.03
Vardhman Concrete Limited
100 (31 March 2017: 100 and 1 April 2016: 100) shares of T 10 each fully paid up in M/$ Zee 0.06 0.05 0.04
Entertainment Enierprises Limited
106 (31 March 2017; 100 and 1 April 2016: 100} shares of T 10 each fully paid up in Mfs Zee 0.06 0.05 0,04
Entertaimment Enterprises Limited {Bonus shares)
0.84 .95 0.67
Investment valued at anzortised cost model
Investment in preference shares (unquoted)
512,500 (31 March 2017: 512,500 and 1 Aprit 2016: 512,500} redeemable shares of Z 10 each 64.06 41,00 41,00
fully paic up in M/s Walldorf Integration Sclutions Limited (refer note no 47)
Less : Impairment of investment - {41,00) {41.00)
64.06 - -
Investment valued at falr value through profit and loss
Investment in mutunl funds {quoted)
89,039 (31 March 2017: 83,834 and | April 2016: 82,212) units in Principal Monthly Income 1.05 0.9% 0.89
Plan - Dividend Reinvestiment
32,987 (31 March 2017: Nil and 1 April 20161 46,3593 anits in HDFC Liquid Furd - Repular 110,47 - 12045
Plan Growth oplion
11152 0.99 121,34
Total 176.42 .94 122.01
Aggrepate book value cof quoted investments 112,36 194 122.01
Agegregale inarket value of quoted investzents 112.36 1.94 122,01
Apgrepate value of unguoted investments 64.06 - -
Apggregate value of impainnent in value of investments - 41,00 41.00
Trade receivables
(% iz millions)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Trade receivablos 3,137.09 2,23593 1,815.49
Receivables from other zelated parties {refer note 35) 4543 42,55 97.93
Tatal trade receivables 3,182.52 2,278.48 1,913.42
Break-up for securiiy details:
Secured, considered good - - B
Unsecured, considered good 3,026.87 2,128.58 1,781.33
Boubtful 155.65 149.50 132.09
3,182,52 2,27848 1,913.42
Tmpairment Allowance (allewance for bad and doubtiul debts)
Unsecured, considered good - - -
Doubtful (155.65) (149.90) {132.09)
Total 3,026.87 2,128.58 1,781,33
The movement in impalvinent of trade receivables as follow:
Asat As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Opening balance 149,90 £32.09 132,09
Additions 12,23 25.00 -
Write off (net of recovery) {6.48) (7.19) -
Closing balance 155,65 149,90 132,09
No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person.
.ﬂ,ﬁfa'ﬁ}:‘%“%} {/ :’ /
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5D,

SE.

3 8

&

TA.

Cash and eash equivalents

(X in millicns)

As af As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Balances with banks:
-0a current accounis 73,39 134.95 8222
-Cheques on hand i74.22 - -
-Deposits with original maturity of Tess than three months 140.76 5.40 1.90
Cash on hand 0,93 3.50 9.64
Total 389,30 143.85 93.76
Other financial assets

{2 in millions)
As at As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprii 2016
Dreposits with origiral maturity for mor than 3 months buf fess than 12 months 1.37 2.58 577
Dreposits with original matwrity for more than 12 months 7.13 4.35 4.41
Interest accrued but not due ow fixed deposits fon shart term deposits) 1.55 2.03 1.44
Interest accrued but not dae on fixed deposits fon long tenn deposits) 1,34 0.30 0.26
Restricted cash* 0.03 - -
Marpin money** 0.1% 0.11 0.11
Total 17.53 9.37 11,99
Current 8.95 4.61 721
Non current 8.58 4.76 478

*Restricted cash represent carmarked bafance for dividend payouts.

**Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of 20,11 million (31 March 20£7: € 0.11 and 31 March 2016: 7 #.11) has been deposited with sales tax departiment.

Loans

(% in millions)

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 Mareh 2017

As at
1 April 2016

Security deposits - non current 20.13 20.34 18.36
Security deposits - current 37.79 3.58 295
Loans refated partics - non current (refer note 35) 632.18 132.73 -
Loans related parties - current 42.14 23.10 159.16
Total loans 732.24 179,75 180,47
Break-op for scenrity details
(a) Secured, considered good; - - -
(B} Unsecured, considered good; and 73224 179.75 180.47
{c) Doubtfal. - - -
732,24 175,75 18047
Corrent 79,93 26.68 162.11
Non corrent . 652,31 153.07 18.36
Inventories
(2 in miiligns)
As at As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Raw materials {at cost) 21,90 6.28 2.16
Finished goods (at bwer of cost and net realisable value) 500,28 560.97 600.03
Finished goods-traded goods (at lower of cost and net realisable value) 382 9.84 £5.40
Total 526,00 §97.09 620.59
Otiter assets
Capital advances

) (¥ in millions)
As at As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Unsecured, considered good. 25.75 0.01 431
Total 25.75 0,01 031
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7B. Other advances
(X In millions}
As at As at As at
31 March 28 31 March 2047 1 April 2016

Unsecured, considered good, 41.75 115.67 9.54
Total 41.78 115,67 9.54

TC. Prepaid expenses
(Z in millions)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2617 1 April 2016

Prepaid expeases - current 18,36 1294 12.47
Prepaid expenses - non-current 7.4% 8.55 £1.25
Totat 25.84 2149 23.72

7D. Balance with statutory / Government authorities
(X in millions)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Ensecured, considered good i.lo 324 277
Tatal 3.10 3.24 277

7E. Other assets
X in milkions)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 7.68 18.88 35,57
Ancillary cost of arranging the borrowings -unamortised cost - - 315
Ancillary cost of arranging the borrowings -unamortised cost - 3.15 1.57
Shares issue expenses - - 11,00
Total 7.68 22,03 51,29
Current 6321 135,00 3735
Non enrrent 40,91 27.44 59,28

8 Deferred taxes
( in millions)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss account in the current year but 3.1 4,22 5.29
atlowed for tax purposes on payment basis in subsequent years

Fixed assets: impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation/anortization charged - 1.49 -
in the financial statemenits

Provision for doubtfial debt & advances 54.39 51.88 45,71
Provision for diminution in value of investments - 13.95 13,95
Total deferred tax assets 57.50 71.54 64,95

Items leading to creation of deferred tax liabilities

Fixed assets: impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortization charged 6.29 243 2.69
in the financial statements

Qthers 0.21 - -
Total deferred tax liabilities 6.50 2.43 2.69
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 51.00 69,11 62.26

[
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9. Shave capital
(% in millions})
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Authorised
40,000,000 (31 March 2017: 40,600,600 and 1 April 2016: 2,210,000) equity shares 200.00 200.00 22.10
of T 5/- each {1 April 2016: equily shares of ¥ §0 each)

Issued, subseribed and fully paid equity capital
34,975,287 (3§ March 2017: 29,844,496 and | April 2016: 201,652) equity shares i74.88 149.22 2.02
of ¥ 5/- each {1 April 2016: equily shares of ¥ 10 each)

174.88 149,22 2.02
a, Recouciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Authorised share eapital No, of shares ¥ in niillions
As at 1 April 2016 2,210,000 22.10
Increase during the year 37,750,000 177.90
As at 31 March 2017 40,000,000 240,00
Increase/{decrease)} during the year - -
As at 31 March 2018 40,000,000 200.00
Issued equity capital No. of shares % in millions
Equity share of ¥ 5/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid

As at 1 April 2036 201,652 2.02
Issued during the year — Share split 201,652 -
Issued during the year - Bonus issue 29,441,192 147.20
As at 31 March 2017 29,844,496 149,22
Issucd during the year - 1IPO 4,850,746 24.26
Issued during the year - ESOPs 280,045 1.40
As at 31 March 2018 34,975,287 174.88

b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T 5 per share (31 March 2017: ¥ 5 per share and 1 April 20£6: % 10 per share), Each hokder of
cquity shares is entiiled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of the sharehodders in the ensuing Annual General Meeling,

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the amount of per share interim dividend recognized as distributions to equity sharcholders at record date of 28 Apail 2016
was ¥ 25 per share (1 April 2016; Nil),

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, The distribution will be in propottion to the number of equity shares keld by the shareholders.

¢. Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at 31 March 2018 No. of shares %a of holding
Mr. Himanshu Gupta 5,777,454 16.52%
M. Binesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 3,790,229 10.84%
s, Neerja Jhnjlimnvala 3,313,018 9.47%
Everstone Capital Partners Il LLC 3,323,229 9.50%
Intermational Finance Corparation 2,805,784 8.02%
HDFC Trustee Cotnpany Limited - HDFC Prudence Fund 2,485,159 T41%
As at 31 March 2017 No. of shares % of holding
Mr, Dvinesh Kumar Jhunjinuwala 4,664,820 13.62%
Mr, Himanshu Gupta 6,167,752 20.67%
Mrz. Neerja Fhunghnuwala 3,553,036 11.91%
Everstone Capital Paniners IL LLC 9,629,472 3227%
Enternational Finance Cotporation 2,805,784 9.40%

d. Aggregate number of bonus shares issned during the period of five years immediately preceding the veport date:
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprit 2016
Mo, of shares No. of shares No. of shares
Equity shares allotted as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalization of securities premium - 29,441,152 -

€, Shares reserved for issue under opttons
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock options (ESOPs) plan of the company, please refer note 36
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10,

11,

Other equity

(¥ in millions)

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2007

Capital reserve

Balance as the beginning of reporting period
Add: Increase during the year

Balance as the end of reporting year

Securities premium account

Balance as the beginning of reporting period

Add: increase because of issue of equity share capital

1ess: decrease due (o transaction cost for issued share capital

TLess: decrease due to utilization towards issue of fully paid up bonus shares
Balance as the end of reporting year

Employee stoek options outstanding

Balance as the beginning of reporting period

Add: compensation option granted during the year- charge for the year
Less: transferred to securities premium on exercise of stock options
Balance as the end of reporting year

Refained earning
Balance as the beginning of reporting period
Add: surplus during the year
Amount available for apprepriation
Less: Appropriations
Dividend on equity shares
Tax on equity dividend
Balance as the end of reporting year

Distribution made and proposed

0.51 0.51
0.51 051
3,491,73 3,638.93
3,321.81 -
(207.19) .
; (147.20)
6,606.35 3,491.73
25,10 7.57
12.22 1753
(29.42) -
7.90 25.10
1,353.41 1,093.05
500.62 27248
1,863.03 1,365.53
(43.56) {10.07)
(8.87) (2.05)
1,810,60 1,353.41

{X in miilions)

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid:

Interim dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2018: ¥ Nil per share
(31 March 2017: 25 per share)
DDT on interim dividend

Final dividend on equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2018 ; Z 1.25 per share

DDT on final dividend

Proposed dividends on equity shares:

Proposed dividend for the year ended on 31 March 2018; ¥ 1.50 per share
(31 March 2017: T 1.25 per share)

DDT on proposed dividend

- 10.07
B 2.05
43.56 B
8.87 -
52,43 12.12
52.46 43.56
10,68 8.87
63.14

52.43

Proposed dividends on equity and preference shares are subject to approval at the anaual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability

(including DDT thereon).
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12A. Non-current borrowings )
{Z in millions)
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprii 2016

Term Loans

Indian rupee loan from ollers (secured) (refer note 'a, b, ¢, d and ¢' below) - - 297.13
Vehicle loans

Indian rupee loan from bank {secured) (refer note f and g) 4.70 6,47 il1.23
Indian rupee lean from others (secured) (refer note h) .16 1.58 -
Total 4.86 8.05 308.36
Secured 4,86 B.05 308.36
Unsecured - . R
Nofe:-

a, Term loan from Siemens Financial Limited taken during the financial year 2013-14, carries interest @ 13.75%. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly
instabments beginning from June' 2013 onwards, The instalment amount ranges from ¥ 0.18 millions to of T 0.32 millions. The lean is sceured by
hypothecation of equipments being purchased, currently valued at T 14.45 willion. Further the loan has been guaranfeed by personal guarantees of Mr.
Himansha Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Junjhnuwala, Directors of the Company & demand promissory note issued in favour of lender. The loan has been
repaid during the financial year 2016-17.

b. Term loan from Sicinens Financial Limited taken during the financial 2014-15, carries interest @ 13.50% to 13.75%. The loan is repayable in 36 equal
moathly instalments beginning from August’ 2014 onwards. The instalment amount ranges from % 0.34 million to of T 0.54 million. The loan is secured by
hypothecation of assefs being purchased, currenily valued at ¥ 14.45 miltion. Further the loan has been puaranteed by personal guarantees of Mr. Himanshu
Gupta and Mr, Dinesh Kumar Jsunjhnuwala, Directors of the Company & demand prontissory note issued in favour of lender. The loan has been repaid
during the current year.

¢. * Term loan from Siemens Financial Limited taken during the financial year 2014-15 carries interest @13.50% . The foan is repayable in 36 equal monthly
instalments of T 0.08 million beginning from April' 2015. Further the loan has been guaramteed by personal guarantees of Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr.
Dinestt Kumar Jhunjhnuwata, Directors of the Company & deimand promissory note issued in favour of lender. The loan has been repaid during the current
year.

d, Temn loan from Indo Star Capital Finance has been taken during the 2014-15 financial year, carries interest {@ 12.50% p.a. to 12.95% p.a, linked to Kolak
Bank Base Rate + 300 basis points with annual reset. (31 March 2016: 12.85% p.a. to 13.00% p.a.). The loan is repayabie in 18 quarterly instalments
beginning front December’ 2014 onwards. Till September 2015, Instalment amount ranging from ¥ 14 million to ¥ 48.46 mitlion per guarter. On December
2015, Company had made early repayment of loan facility amounting to % 350 milion, consequent fo that repayment schedule has been revised, The
remaining loan amount is repayable in 7 quarterly instalment beginning from September 2017 onwards. The instalment amount is ranging {rom 2 3.23 million
to T 48.46 miltion per quarter. The loan is secured by {i) First and exclusive charge on optienally convertibie redeemnable debentures of New Saraswati House
(India) Private Limiled by way of pledge (ii) First and exclusive charge on 98% equity of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited by way of pledge (ifi}
Second pari passu charge on the entire fixed assets of the Company (iv) Second pari passu charge on all current assets of the Company, Further the loan
facility has been secured demand promissory note issued in favour of lender. The loan has been repaid during the current year,

e. Term loan from Axis Finauce Limited has been taken during the year ended 31st March 2017 and carries interest () 11.25 % p.a. linked fo the Axis Bank Base
Rate . The facility has been taken for a period of 5 years and is repayable in 14 equal quartesly instalments of ¥ 71.43 million beginning from June 2018, The
facility has been secured against: (i) second pari passu charge on both present and future current and fixed assets of e Company, (ii) ptedge on entire stake to
be purchased by the Company ie., 43.54% of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited, (iii) pledge on 20% equity shares of the Company by {lie promoters to be
replaced by pledge of 74% shares of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited acquired by Company and Eurasia Publishing House Private Linsited (iv} pledge on
100% equity shares of New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited, subsidiary Company (v} pledge on 100% equity shares of Eurasia Publishing House
Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company (vi) charge over publishing license/ IPRs as wel as brand of New Saraswati and (vii) PDCs for the interest
and priceipal amount. The above securities are to be shared pari-passu with respect 1o both the facilities of Axis Finance Limited in borrower iec., the
Cempany and its wholly owned subsidiary Company, Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited. Furtheninore, on acquisition of bafance shares of Chhaya
Prakashani Privale Limited, the balance shares and the publishing license as well as the brand is to be charges to Axis Finance Limited.

Moreover, the sanction lelter also contains the mandatory prepayment terms as follows:

- Any change in ownership structure and / or management control of borrower companies i.¢., the Company and Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited and
security providers i.e., New Saraswati House {India) Private Litnited and Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited;

- Proceeds from any third party by way of further equity/debt infusion into borrower companies i.e., the Company and Eurasia Publishing House Private
Limited;

- Rating downgrade

- Merger events

- Interest reset event, in case borrower is not agreeable with the revised interest rates.

The Company had disclosed this under the Objects Clause of the Prospectus filed with SEBI , hence the Tenn loan has been disclosed as “short term” under
current maturities of long term borzowings. The Company listed on NSE and BSE on completion of Initial Public Offering (“IPO™) on May 9, 2017 ., The loan
las been repaid during the financial year 2017-18.

f.  Vehicle loans have been taken from HDFC Bank, ICICI Bank and Vijaya Bank and carmy interest 2 10.00% to 12.00%. Fhe lean is repayable in 36 1o fﬁ
equal moenthly instalments ranging from ¥ 4,348 to T 99,400, The toan is secured by hypothecation of respective vehicles. /
15 i s
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g. Vehicle loan taken during 2016-17 from Daknler Financial, carry interest @ 9.81% p.a. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instafments of 2 .13
million. The loan is secured by hypothecation of respective vehicle.

h.  Vehicle loan faken during the current year from Yes Bank Ltd, carry interest @ 8,96% p.a. The loan is repayable in 60 equat monthly instalments of 2 17,740
P

to T 25,9%0). The loan is secured by hypothecation of respective vehicle,

(This space has been lefi intentionally)
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12B, Current borrowings

I

( in millions)_

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Current maturity of loan

Term loans

Indian rupee loan from financial institutions {secured} (Refer Note 12A {e) 0.08 £,297.19 4,20
Vehicle foans

Indian rupee loan from bank (secured) (refer Note 12A (f) and (b)) 3,55 378 .60
Indian rupee loan from financial institutions (secured) (refer Note 124 (g)} 1,42 1.32 -
Tatal eurrent maturity of Indian currency loan 5.05 1,302.29 24.80
Cash eredit from banks (secured) 257.62 233.83 220,00
Indian rupee working capital demand lonn from banks (secured) 250.00 565.00 276.82
Fotal eurrent Borvowings 512,67 2,101.12 521.62
Lesst Amouet presented under "other financial liabilities” {5.05) {1,202.29) (24.80)
Total current borrowlings 507.62 798.83 496,82
Secured 507.62 T798.83 496,82
Unsecared - - -
Note :-

Working capitat demand loan from HDFC Bank Limited (under Multiple Banking Arrangement with DBS , Induslnd Bank, Kotak Mahindra Bank,
Standard Chartered Bank ) is secured by way of first pari passu charge on the entire existing and future current assets and movable fixed assets of the
Company and personal g of Mr. Hi hu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwla , Directors of the Company upto 9 June 2017 &
Corporate Guarantee of Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited, This loan carries interest rate ranging from 8.50 % to 9.50 % p.a. {31 March 2017
9.25 % to 10.25 % p.a.).

Working capital demand loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank (under Multiple Banking Amangement with DBS , Induslod Bank, HDFC Bawk, Standard
Chartered Bank ) is secured by way of first pari passu charge on the entire existing and future current assets and movable fixed assets {other than thase
cxclusively charged to other lender, if any) of the Company and personal guarantee of Mr, Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kuwar Jhunjhnuwla
yDircetors of the Company upto 7 November 2617 , This loan carries interest rate ranging from 8.60 % to 11.35% p.a. (31 March 2017: 9.35 % fo
11.35% p.a).

Waorking capital demand loan from Standard Chartered Bank {under MuBliple Banking Arrangement with DBS , Indusind Bank, HDFC Bank, Kotak
Mabindea Bank } is secured by way of fiest pari passu charge on the entire existing and future cusrent assets and movable fixed assets (other than those
exclusively charged to other lender, if any) of the Company and personal guarantee of Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Fhunjhouwla
JDirectors of the Company uplo 4 August 2017 . This loan carries interest rate ranging from 8.60 % lo 9.15 % p.a. (3F March 2017 9,15% to £0.75%
p.a.

Working capital demand loan from DBS Bank Limited (under Multiple Banking Arrangement with HDFC Bank, IndusInd Bank, Kotak Mahindra Bank,
Standard Chartered Bank } is secured by way of first pasi passu charge on the entire existing and fiture current assets and movable fixed assets (other
than those cxclusively charged to other fender, if any) of the Company and persenal guarantee of Mr. Himanshu Gupla and Mr, Dinesh Kumar
Ihunjhnuwla Directors of the Company Upto 7 November 2017, This loan carries interest rate ranging from 8.45% to 9.25 % p.a (31 March 2017 9.15%
to 9.50 %}

Working capital demand loan from DCB Bank Liited taken during the year 2016-17, is secured by way of subservient charge on the entire existing and
future current assets and mavable fixed assets of the Company. This loan carrics interest rate of 9.35% p.a. The loan has been repaid in the Financial Year
20£7-18,

Cash credit from Indusind Bank Lanited (under Multiple Banking Arrangement with DBS , Standard Charlered Bank , HDFC Bank, Kotak Mahindra
Bank ) is secured by way of first pari passu charge on the eatire existing and future current assets and movable fixed assets of the Company and personal
guarantee of Mr. Himansha Gupta, Directors of the Company. it carries interest rate ranging from 10% p.a. (31 March 2017: 12,10 % to 12.35% p.a.).

Cash credit from Kotak Mahindra Bank {under Multiple Banking Arrangement with DBS |, Indusind Bank, HDFC Bank, Standard Chartered Bank ) is
secured by way of first pari passu charge on tie entire existing and future current assets and movable fixed assets {other than those exclusively charged
to other lender, if any) of the Company and persenal guarantee of Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwla Directars of the Company
upto 7 November 2017. This carries fnterest rate ranging from 10.85% to 11.05% p.a. (31 March 2017: 11.08% to 1£.22% p.a.).

Cash credit from Standard Chartered Bank (under Multiple Banking Arrangement with DBS |, Indusind Bank, HDFC Bank, Kotak Mahindra Bank ) is
secured by way of first pari passu charge on the entire existing and Fiture current assets and movable fixed assets (other than those exclusively charged
to other lender, if any) of the Company and personal guarantes of personal guaraitee of Mr. Himanstu Gupta and Mr, Dinesh Kumar Jhunjlouwla
JDirectors of the Company upto 4 August 2017. This carries interest rate ranging from 8.60% to 11,15%. (31 March 2017: 10.75% to 11 % p.a).

Cash Credit from HDFC Bank Limited (under Multiple Banking Amrangement with DBS |, Indusind Bank, Kotak Mahindra Bank, Standard Chartered
Bank ) is secured by way of first pari passu charge on the entire existing and future current assets and movable fixed assets of the Company and personal
guarantee of Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr, Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhsuwla , Directors of the Company upto 9 June 2017 & Corporate Guarautee of Nirja
Publishers & Printers Private Eimited. This carries interest rate ranging from 9.50 % to 11.25% p.a. (3F March 2017: 11.25 % to 1£.30 % p.a.).
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13,

14.

15.

Trade payables

(T in millions)

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Agpril 2016
Trade payables of micro enterprises and simalf enterprises (refer note 43) 6.57 249 1.18
Trade payables of related entities (refer note 35) 361.39 487.30 689.24
Trade payables cther than micro enterprises and smatl enterprises 935.04 410.77 382,95
1,303.00 900.56 1,073.37

Other financial Nabilities

X in millions)

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2018 3% March 2017 1 April 2016

Other financinl liabilities at amortised cost
Interest accrued but not due 0.09 0.08 0.26
Interest acerned and due on security deposits 1.05 0.28 -
Interest accrued and due on bill discounted 5.76 - -
Current maturity of long tern loans (refer note 12B) 5.08 1,302.29 24.80
Security deposits received 8.36 19,65 0.62
Interest accrued on trade payables to micro and small eaterprises 0.04 0.01 0,01
Total (A) 2035 1,32231 25.69
Other financial Habilities at fair value through profit and loss
Financial liability* 657.00 - -
Total (B) 657.00 - -
Financial guarantee obligation (Refer Note 5A) 7.76 - -
Total (C) 7.76 - -
Total (A+B+C) 85,11 1,322.31 25.69
Current 685,11 1,322.31 25.69

Non current

remaining ecquity shares as per share purchase agreement,

" *Financial liability represents amount payable to minority shareholders for 38,554 shares of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited towards purchase of

Other linbilities

{% in millions)

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprll 2016
Statutory dues payable 84.33 43,22 45.80
Rent equalization reserve 6.04 4.92 2.56
Advance frem customers 16.48 17.07 5.42
Total 106,85 45,21 53.78
Cugrent 100,81 60.29 51.22
Non current 6.04 4.92 2.56
(This space has been feft intentionally}
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16. Net employee defined benefit Habilities

17.

(% in millions)

As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Provision for gratuity (refer note 33) 8.90 8.46 7.68
Total 8.90 8,46 7.68
Current - - -
Non current 8.90 8.46 7.68
Other provisions
(€ in millions)
As at As at As at

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Provision for income tax {net of advance tax)}
Provision for unclaimed dividend
Total other provisions

Current
Non-current

(This space has been left intentionally}

133.20 110.23 49,19
0.03 - -
133.23 110,23 49.19
133.23 110,23 49,19
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i8.

19,

19,1

19.2

Revenue from operations

(¥ in millions)
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Sale of products
Finished goods 3,353.11 2,823.40
Traded goods 82.13 83.16
Other operating revenne
Lease income 043 17.16
Scrap sale 423 230
Total 3,439.90 2,926.02
Other incomes
(¥ in millions)
For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Finance income
Interest income on:
~ Bank deposits
- Unwinding of discount on security deposits paid
- Income tax refund
- Others
Total finance income (A)

Other income

Dividend incomne on current investments
Net gain on sale of current investments (net)
Profit on sale of fixed asscts (net)

Foreign exchange fluctuation gain {net}

Fair value gain on finaucial instrunents at fair value through profit or loss
Reversal of temporary dimninution in value of investments

Others
Tatal other income {B)
Grand Total (A+B)

24.45 0.8%
6.34 224
1.62 125

170,98 77.37

203,39 81.75

0.60 0.02

- 575

- 1.66
0.20 -

23.57 0.07

4L.00 0.39
2.07 3.85

66.84 11.74

270,23 93.49
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26, Cost of published goods/material consumed

{Z in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Inventory at the beginning of the year 6.28 2.16
Add: Purchases of published goods 373.04 998.05
Add: Printing charges 325,05 -
Add: Purchases of paper 555.22 -
Add: Purchases of VRX Sets , CDs and other items 13.32 19,48
1,272.91 1,019.69
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 21.90 6.28
Cost of published goods/material consumed 1,251.01 1,013.41
Detatfs of raw material purchased
Paper 555.22 -
Total 555,22 ~
21, Purchase of traded goods
(¥ in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Purchase of traded goods sold 16.03 52.52
Total 16.03 52.52
22. {Incrensc) decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress

(% in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 Maxch 2017

Inventory at the end of the year

Finished goods 504,10 570,81

Inventory at the beginning of the year '

Finished goods {570.81) {594.09)

Increase/{decrease) in inventories (06.71) (23.28)

Details of inventory at the end of the year

Finished goods

Manufactured goods

Books 500.28 560,97

Traded goods

Books 3.82 9.84
564,10 570,81
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23,

24,

25,

Publication expense

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Royalty 33277 283.64
Other publication expenses 47.60 33.36
Total 380,37 317.80
Selling and distribution expense
(¥ in millions}
For the year ended For the year ended

31 Maxrch 2018

31 March 2017

Advertisement, publicity and exhibition 63.68 60.04
Freight & cartage outward 85.77 66.56
Packing & dispatch expenses 12.22 845
Vehicle running & maintenance 16.20 19.01
Travelling & conveyance 54.6% 50.51
Leases rent-vehicles 1.01 1.82
‘Fotal 233.57 266.39
Employce benefits expense

{% in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Salaries, bonus and allowances 465,15 405.14
Contribution to provident and other funds 29.40 26.93
Gratuity expense (refer note 33) 9.10 5.41
Employee stock oplion expense 9.48 15.09
Staff welfare cxpenses 30.70 28.70
Total 543.83 481.27

{This space has been left intentionally)
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26.

27.

28,

Depreciation and amortization expense

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Deepreciation on property, plant and equipment {refer note 3)
Amortisation on intangible fixed assets (refer note 4)
Total depreciation and amertisation expenses

Other expenses

14.65 43.04
18.85 22.09
33.50 65.13

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

- Plant and machinery

-Building

-Others

Insurance

Rates and taxes

Communication cost

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional fee

Donations

Payment to auditor (refer details below)
Water and electricity charges

Provision for doubtful receivables
Recruitment expenses

Quisourced employee cost

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net}

Office expenses

Security charges

Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 41)
Director sitting fees

Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net)

Fair value loss on financial instroments at fair vatue through profit or loss

Miscellaneous expenses
Total other expenses

Payment te auditors:

107.87 101.35
0.02 0.16
0.01 0.14

20.90 14.73
4.15 1.88
0.76 0.32

16.07 14,52
241 2.18

26.24 26.55
0.52 0.01
6,60 345

15,35 11.01

12.23 25.00
0.76 0.93

60.12 43.24
2.04 -
278 4.77

12.34 12.30
1.82 2.72
1.72 0.63

- 0.73

- 0.1¢

6.97 5.00
298.19 273.74

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
As anditor:
- Audit fee 4.12 3.45
- Limited review 212 -
In other capacity
- Other services (certification fees) 0.06 -
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.30 -
6.60 3.45
Finanece cost
(¥ in millions}
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017,
Interest expense
- On term loan 18.03 78.00
- On others 70.61 58.16
Bank charges 2.84 1.10
Foreclosure charges 0.01 -
Loan processing fee 5.713 11,79
Total 97.22 149,05
!
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19, Income tax

30.

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are:
Consolidated statement of profit and loss:
Profit or loss section

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Current income tax:

Current income fax charge 268,02 171.00
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year {2.93) 1.50
Deferred tax:

Relating o origination and reversal of temporary differences 17.02 (6.99)
Income {ax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 282.11 165,51
QCI section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Net loss/{gain) on remeasurcments of defined henefit plans (3.10) {0.42)
Income tax charged to OCI 1.07 0.15
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s demestic tax rate for 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Accounting profit before tax 789.70 437.72
At India’s statufary income tax rate of 34.608% (31 March 2017: 34.608%) 273.30 151.49
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years (2.93) 1.50
Non deductible expenses 16.28 1119
Others L. (4.54) 1.33
At the effective income tax rate of 35.72% (31 March 2¢17: 35.96%) 282,11 165.51
Income tax expense reporied in the statement of profit and loss 2821t 165.51
Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by each type of cquity is shown below:
During the year ended 31 March 2018

Retained enrnings Total
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 3.10 3,10
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/{Josses} on defined benefit plans (1.07) (1.07)

2.03 2.03

During the year ended 31 March 2617

Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans 042 0.42
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans {0.15) (0.15)

0.27 0,27
o

A
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31. Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year,

Diluted EP8 amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares
info equity shares.

Fhe following reflects the inconie and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company 507.59 272.21
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Earning per Share

. 34,39 29.84
(Basic)
Wc?lghled average number of equity shares used for computing Eaming per Share 1447 29.90
(Diluted)
Basic EPS . 14.76 9.12
Diluted DPS 14,72 9.10

(This space has been left intentionally)
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32, Significant aceounting judpements, estimates and assumptions
The preparatien of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions thal affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disciesures (including contingent liabilities). The management
belicves thal the estimates used in preparation of the fnancial statements are prudent and reasonable. Eincertzinty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outeomes that require a malerial adjustment 1o the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods,

A, Judgements

In the process of applying the Companys accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recopnised in the financiaf statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company s a lessee

‘The Company has entered into lease agreements with lessor and has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the cconomic life of the commereial praperty and the fair valae of the asset, that it does not retains the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

B. Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the Riture and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a materizl adjustinent to
il carrying amnounts of assets and lisbilities within the next financial year, are described below, The Company based ils assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circomstances and assumptions about fature developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Estimates and underlying assmnptions arc reviewed en an
ongoing basis. Revisions lo accounting estimates are recognised prospectively,

Taxes
Deferred fax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that faxable profits will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Sigpificant management judgement is

required to delermine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recopnised, based upen the likely timing and the level of fature taxable profits together with future fax
planaing strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratulty}

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of #lie gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making
varlous assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the firture, These include the determination of the discount rate, fisture safary increases and mortality rates. Due
to the complexities invofved in the valuation and its long-tern: nature, a defined benefit chligation is highly sensitive fo changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at ¢ach reporting date.

The parameter most subject fo change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the imanagement considers the interest rates of government bords with
teria that corespond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortatity tables. Those mortality tables fend to change only at interval in Tesponse lo demograpliic changes, Future satary
increases and grafuity increases are based on expected fature inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 33.

Provision for trade receivable

Trade receivebles do not cary any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated
irrecoverabie amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Individual trade receivables are
writlen off when management deems them not to be collectible. For details of allowance for doubtful debis please refer Note Sc.,

Inipalement of non-financlal assets
The carying amounts of the Company’s non-financisl assets, other than deferred tax asseis, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any
indicalion of impaizment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,

The recoverable amount of an asset er cash-generating unit (*CGL') is the greater of its vatue in use and #s fair value less costs fo seil. In assessing value in use, the estimated
fture cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of meney and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets ("CGU).

Markel related information and estimates are used 1o determine the recoverable amount, Key assumptions or which management has based its determination of recoverable

amount include estimated tong term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take iato account past experience and
represent management’s best estimate about future developments,

(This space has been left intentionaily)

Jumm—
o

s
L]
AP \.‘\/ ?
il ng'ﬁ ¥

5
b

e



S Chand and Cempany Limited
Nates to financial statement as at 31 March 2018
CIN: L22219DL1970PLCO05480

33, Gratulty and other post- emiployment benefits plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed atleast five years of service ets a gratuity o
departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject te a maximun of 7 2 million. The

scheme is funded with an insurance compeny in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarize the components of nel benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss acceunt and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for

Gratiity Plan.

Statement of profit & loss account
Net employee benefit expense recognised in employee cost:

For the year eaded
31 March 2018

For the year ended
3t March 2017

Cugrent sendee cost 6.69 5.3C
Pasl service cost 1.82 -
Interest cost on defined obligation 2.94 242
Expected retun: on plan assels {2.35) (2.31%
9,10 5.41
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:
For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Actuarial {gains) / lesses on obligation
Actuarial gains f {losses) on assets

Balance sheet
Changes tn the present value of the defined benefit ebligation are as follows;

(3.7 0.48
{0.61) 0.9¢
(3.10) {0.42)

For the year endedl
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2017

Opening defined benefit obligation
Curreat service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid from plan assets
Benefits paid directly by employer
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation
Acquistion/ divestiure

Closing defined benefit obligation

Current Portion
Non - Current Portlon

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

40.38 36,75
6.69 5,30
1.82 .
2.94 242

6.02) (5.78)

{0,10) -

3.71) 0,48

- 1,21

42,00 40.38

42,00 40.38

For the year ended
3 March 2018

Far the year ended
31 March 2017

Opening fair value of plan assets 31.92 29,07
Expected return 2.35 231
Contributions by employer 5.46 542
Benefils paid {6.02) (5.78)
Actuarial galnf(loss) {0.61) 0.90
Closing fair value of plane assels 3310 3192
The Company expects {0 contribute ¥ 756,610 to gratuity in this year {31 March 2017:3 {,171,225)
The major categories of plan nssets as 8 percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended For ke year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Investments with insurer

The econemic and demographic

100%

[Miens used in determining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

100%

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Discount rate 7.70% 7.35%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.70% 6.00%
Expected rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Retirement Age (In years) 60 years G0 years
Empleyes tumover =

- For Service uplo 5 years 5.00% 5.00%

- For Service inore than 5 years 1.00% 1.00%

Maortadity Rate

TALM (2006-08)

IALM (2006-08)

Tl:e estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of infiation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as

The overall expected rate of retum on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicabie to the period over which the obligation

is 1o be settied,
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The impact of sensitivity aualysis due to changes in the significant actuarial assurnptions on the defined benefit obligations is given in below table:
Change in For the year ended  For the year ended

assumptions 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Discount rate +1% 37.60 36.01
-1% 47.23 45.60
Expected rate of salary increase +1% 47.05 45.23
- 1% 37.69 35.10

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assunptions oceurring al the end of the reporting perdod,

(This space htas been left intentionally)
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34,

Leases

Operating lease: company as lessce

. The Company has taken premises for office use under cancellable operating lease agreements. The total lease rentals recognized as an expense during the year under the above lease

agreements ageregates to I 107.87 million (31 March 2017: T 10135 million), These lease have average lifé of between one to nine years. There arc no restrictions imposed by the lease
agreements. There are na sub leases,

. The Company has taken vehicle for office use umder Hable aperaling fease ts. The totai lease rentals recognized 25 an expense during the vear under the above lease
agreements aggregates to T 1 million (3t March 2017: T 1.82 mitiion). There are no resirictions impased by the lease agr . There are no sub leases.
Further sinimum rental payable under snon-canceliable operating lease are as follows ¢ (% in millions)
As at Asat As at

March 31,2018 March 31,2017 Aprii 1,2016

Within one year 1330 1330 1330
After one year but not more than five years 55 5322 53.22
After five years 333 16.63 2093

. Related party disclosure

. Namies of related partles and related pariy relationshl,

Related parties where conirol exists

Suhsidiary company : Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited
Safari Digita? Education Initiatives Private Limited
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited
Blackie & Son (Calcutia) Private Limited
BPI (Iadiz) Private Limited
Arch Papier Mache Private Limited (till 8 December 2016)
Vikas Publishing House Privale Limited
DS Digital Private Limited
New Saraswali (India) Private Limited
8 Chand Edutech Private Limited
Chhaya Prakashani Private Limiled (w.e.f 5 December 2016}
indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited (w.c.l'5 December 2016)
Publishing Services Private Limiled (w.c.f 5 December 2016)

Related partles with whom transactions have taken place durbig the year:

Enterprises over which Key Management H Hotet Tourist (Pastnership firm}
personnel or their refalives exercise i Raasha Entertainment & Leisure LLP
significanl infloence H 5 Chand Hotels Private Limited

5C Hotel Tourist Detuxe Private Limited
Shaara Hospitalities Private Limited

S Chand Properties Private Linited
Shyam Eal Charitable Trust

RKG Hospitalities Privale Limited

Assogiafe : Edutor Technolopies India Private Limited
Smartivity Labs Private Limited

Key Management Personnel (KM P) & their relatives

Mrs. Ninmala Gupta : Chair Person and Managing Director (till 20 May 2016)
Mrs. Savita Gupta H Whole-time Director (il 20 May 2016)
Director (w.e.f. 20 May 2016)
Mr. Himanshu Gupia . : Joint Managing Director (till 20 May 2016}
Managing Director (w.c.f. 20 May 2016}
Mrs. Ankila Gupla : Whele-time Director (iill 20 May 2016)
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Tunjhouwaia . H Vice Chair Person aid Director Finance (till 26 May 2016)
Whale-time Director {w.e.£. 20 May 2016)
Mrs. Neera Jhunjhauwaly : Whole time Director {till 20 May 2016)
Mr. Gavrav Fhanjhnuwala : Director
Mr. Saurabh Mittal : Chief Financial Officer
Mr, Jagdeep Singh : Company Secrelary

Relatives of KMP : Mr. Ravindra Kumar Gupta
H Mrs. Neerja Jhunjbnuwala (w.e.f, 20 May 2016)

(This space has been left intentionally) //
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{A { in ¥ millions}
o | ey g
Nature of Trapsacllons Period/Year Ended Subsidlaries . Personnck & thelr Total
exercise significant
Iaflence relatives
Purchase of books and athers
Nizja Publishers & Pricters Privale Limviled (books) 31 March 2018 11634 - - 11684
31 March 2037 (20630)) - 20630y
Vikas Publishing Housc Private Limited (books) 31 March 2038 24637 - 24637
31 Manch 2037 (824.45)) - (B24.45)]
BPI {India) Prvate Limited (books} 31 March 2018 0.33 - 0.33
31 March 2017 {4.65) - (1.65)
New Saraswath (India) Privale Limited {books) 31 March 2018 0.00 - 0.00
31 March 2037 - - -
Smantivity Labs Privale Limited (sefs} 31 March 2038 - 025 - 025
31 March 2017 - - B .
Smuntivily Labs Private Linited (VRX Sdis) 31 March 2018 .29 - .29
31 March 2017 (0.38) - 10.38)]
Printing charges B - -
Nirja Publishers & Printers Frivate Limited 31 Mrach 2018 2829 - 2829
31 March 2017 - - .
Vikas Publishing Honse Privale Limited 31 March 2018 261.76 - 261,76
31 March 2017 -
Ttoyalty expense - -
Enrasia Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 2341 - 2301
31 March 2087 (18.42) - . (18 42);
Biackie & Son (Calcutla) Private Limited 31 March 2038 209 - 209
31 March 2037 {267 - (2.67)
BPI {Indiz) Private Limited 31 March 2018 0.8 - 0.55
31 March 2057 {059 - (059}
Purchase- (Oihery from - - -
SC Hetel Tourist Delue Private Limited 31 March 2038 - 117 - 11?7
31 March 2017 - (1.49) - .19
Hotel Tourist 31 March 2018 339 - 339
31 March 2047 - (4.16)) - (4.16)
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2038 007 . - 007
31 March 2057 {133 - - {123)
S Chand Holels Privale Limited 31 March 2038 - 013 - 043
31 March 2087 - - . .
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Eimited 31 March 2018 723 - 723
31 March 2017 (06D - 067
Purchase of fired assct and paper - -
DS Digital Private Limited {fixed asscls) 31 iarch 2018 395 - 395
31 March 2017 - - -
Vikas Publishing House Private Linflaxd (paper) 31 March 2018 212 - 121z
31 March 2017 - -
Sales of bagks, fixed assets and paper -
BPI (lndia) Privale Lindued {books) 31 March 2018 - - .
31 March 2017 (00} - (0.00)
New Saraswati House Private Limited {books) 31 March 2018 0.05 - 005
31 March 2017 (G084 - 0.08)
DS Digilat Privale Limited (fixed assets) 31 March 2¢18 10.19 - - 10,19
33 March 2017 (0.07) - - 0.67)
Safari Digilal Educalion Iniliatives Private Lintited {E books)} ¢ March 2018 229 - 239
31 March 2017 (238) - (238)
Vikas Publishing House Private Litnited {fixed assets) 31 March 2018 1.91 - - 1151
31 March 2017 - - . .
Other expenses pald (reimbiursement) - - .
Ewrasia Publishing House Privale Limiled 31 March 2018 - - _
31 March 2017 (0.51) - - (0.51)
Mirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 31 Marcl 2018 - - -
31 March 2017 0.5 - 10.50)
§ Chand Edutech Private Liniiloid 31 March 2018 849 - B4y
31 harch 20§7 (4.47) - - {447}
BP1 (fdia) Private Eimilod 31 March 2018 009 - - 0.09
31 March 2017 {0.16) - - {0.16}
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 017 - 017
31 March 2047 {1.10) - - {1.10}
Safari Digilat Education Initiatives Privale Limited 31 March 2018 .59 - 0.5%
31 Masch 2017 {2467} - {0673
DS Digital Private Einiled 31 March 2018 £.09 - 0.0%
31 March 2¢17 ({022 - {0.22}
Shyam Lal Charitable Trust 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - .02y {002
New Saraswati House Privale Limited 31 March 2618 .66 - 0.66
31 March 2017 (A8 - (0.48)
Rentals paid . -
Arch Papier Mache Private Limited 31 March 2018 - - .
31 Marckh 2017 {14.42) - - (1442}
Safari Digilat Educalion Initiatives Private Limited 31 March 2018 1253 - - 1253
: 31 March 2017 {11:.03)| - - {11.03)
S Chard Propertivs Private Limited 31 Marck 2018 - 29.42 - 25.42
31 Manck 2017 - (2834} - 2834
hrs.Savita Gopla 31 March 2018
31 March 2037
s Neeja Jhunjhnuwala 31 March 2038
31 March 2047
Ravindra Kumar Gupla 31 March 2018
31 March 2047




§ Chand and Company Linsited
Notes to finandiz] statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
CIN:L22219DL1970P)C 005400

Lease rent peeeived from
Nirja Publishers & Printers Privale Linited

31 March 2018

31 March 2017 (030} - {0.303
Vikas Publishing Housc Private Limited 31 Masch 2018 o3¢ - 030
31 March 2047 {150} - - {1.50)
DS Digital Private Limited 31 March 208 ¢.13 - - 0.12
31 March 2017 (1535) - - {15.35)
Interest income - - -
Euwrasia Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 5630 - 567G
31 March 2017 (3.54) - (3.54)
New Saraswali House Privale Limited 31 March 2018 £4.52 - 6462
31 March 2047 (6830 - - {68.50)
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 4279 - 4275
31 March 2017 - - - -
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 31 March 2018 354 N 3.54
31 March 2047 {2.09) - - (209
DS Digital Private Limited 31 March 20(% 1.23 - 1.2}
31 March 2057 (284 - - (238)
S Chand Eduteck Private Lintited 31 March 2018 o7 - - 077
31 March 2047 - - - -
Miscellaacous Incete - -
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 185 - - 3.65
31 March 2017 (3.57) - - (3.57)
S Chand Edulech Private Lindled 31 March 2018 o7 - 0.72
31 March 2017 - - - -
Loans glyen - - -
Furasia Publishing House Private Lindited 31 March 2018 $20.25 - - 52025
31 March 2047 {11023} - - {110.23)
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 466,00 - - 16600
31 March 2017 - - - -
Now Sarswali House Privaie Limited 31 March 2018 7250 - - b
31 March 2047 - - - -
D5 Digital Private Limited 31 Masch 2018 4258 - 42.55
31 March 2017 - - - -
5 Chard Edutech Privae Lindid 31 March 2018 2800 - - 2040
31 March 2017 - - -
Safari Digital Education Iiliatives Privale Limited 31 March 2018 8344 - - 8144
31 March 2017 {1603 - - {16000
Loans repayment recelved - - -
Vikas Publishing House Private Liniled 31 March 2018 50.00 - - 5000
31 March 2017 - - - -
New Saraswati House Private Lintited 31 March 2018 42.50 - - 47.50
31 March 2017 - - - -
Safvri Digital Education itiatives Privale Linsited 31 March 2018 15.08 - - 1600
31 Mareh 2017 - - - -
[Remuneration to KMP - B i
Mrs. Nirmls Gupta 31 March 2618 - - - -
3§ March 2017 - - {0.16)) {136}
Mr. Gaurav Thunjiusmwata 3 March 2013 - - - -
3t March 2017 - - 020 {0.20)
Mrs.Savita Gupta 31 March 2618 - - - -
3¥ March 2017 - - (0.490)) {40}
r. Dinesh Knmar Jwaghmwala 31 March 2018 - - 16.42 1642
31 March 2017 - - 110.49) {10.19)
Mr. Himanshe Gupta 31 March 2018 - - 1642 1642
31 March 2017 - - (10.19)) (H0.15)
Mrs.Neerja Jhuajhnowala 31 March 201% - . -
31 March 2017 - (0.16) (0.6}
Mry, Ankilz Gupta 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - (0.16)) {016}
Saurabh Mitial 31 Marck 2018 - - 1276 1276
31 Marck 2017 - (9.43)) (743
Jagdep Singh 31 March 2018 - - 549 545
31 March 2037 - - (741 241}
Tnvestment made during the pericd - -
DS Digital Private Limited (Preference shares) 31 March 20i8 - - -
31 Manch 2087 {160, - (160,00}
Clihya Prakashani Private Limited (Equity shares) 31 March 208 . - - -
31 March 20t7 (1,000.04) - - (3,000.04}
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited {Debenfure)* 31 March 2018 691 60 - 691.60
31 March 2017 - - -
Sinanivily Labs Private Limited (Equity shares) 31 March 2018 - - -
31 March 2017 - (0.52) - (0.52)
Smartivity Labs Private Limited (Preference shares) 31 March 2018 - 250 - 2.50
31 March 2017 . (9.49) - 3.4
Balances vutstandieg as at 31 Maych 2018 - - -
Security deposit recelvable - - -
Arch Papicr Mache Private Limited 3 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - - -
1 April 2014 (9.12) B - (9.1
Safari Digital Educalion Inifiatives Private Limited 31 March 2018 4.30 - - 430
31 March 2017 {4.80) - {4.30))
£ Apql 2016 {4.30) - - 309
3 Chand Properties Privale Limited 31 March 2018 - 12,35 - 1258
31 March 2007 - (12.55) . 1255)
1 Aprit 2016 - (12.53) - (12.35)
Mrs.Savita Gupla 31 March 2018 - - 0.5% 0.54
31 March 2017 - .59 (0.5%)
1 April 2016 - {839 {0.39)]
Mrs.Neera Sunjhonwala 31 March 2018 - - 0.2 0,2
31 Masch 2007 - ({.12) (0.12)]
1 April 2016 - (3.12) (0.12),
Ravindra Kunur Gupla 31 March 2018 - - 441 041
31 Mazeh 2017 - R (041 (041
§ Agpril 2816 - - [ X)3] (@41

Ty




§ Chand and Company Limited
Notes o financlal statemeats for the year ended March 31, 2018
CIN:L22215DL1970PLCODS400

Loans ani advances - -
Ewasia Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2618 - - - -
31 March 2017 {112.91) B - (112.21)
1 Aprit 2016 - - . -
Vikas Publisling House Privale Limitad 31 March 2018 454,51 - - 454.51
31 March 2617 - - -
1 Aprii 2016 - - .
Safari Digital Education Inifiatives Private Limited 3 March 2018 8619 - - £6.19
31 March 2017 (20.35)| - - {20.35)|
1 Aprit 2016 (18.53)| - - {18.53),
DE Digital Private Limiled 31 March 2018 5590 - - 5570
31 March 2017 . - - -
1 Apnil 2016 (B4 .86)| - - {86.86)
S Chardl Edutech Private Limited 31 March 2018 39.34 - . 39.84
31 March 2017 (1242) . . (1242
1 April 2016 (7.94)] - - {7.99)
SC Hotel Fourist Detuxe Privale Linidied 3t March 2018 . - - -
3 March 2017 - {14) . {019
1 April 2016 - {5.13) - {0.13))
New Saraswati House (hulia) Private Limijed 31t March 2018 318S - - 3134
31 March 2017 (231} - . {231
1 April 2016 (33.16); B - (33.16),
Raasha Entertainnent & Leisure [LP 31 March 2018 . 8.2 - .22
31 March 2017 - {022) - {0.22))
1 April 2016 - ©22) . 022
Shaara Hospitalitics Private Limited 31 March 2038 . filt - ogl
31 Mach 2037 - @.01) - ©on
i Aprl 2016 - {0.01) - {0.01)|
BF1 (India) Private Limiled 31 March 2058 554 B - 554
31 Marck 2057 (6.31) - - (6.59)]
{ April 2016 {11.83)] - - (11.85)]
RKG Hositatities Private Limiled 31 March 2018 - 0.1 - 034
31 March 2017 - {034 B (034}
L April 2085 - 0.34)] - w3n]
‘Frade payables - - -
Niga Publishers & Prinfers Privale Limited 31 March 2018 153,00 - - 153.00
31 March 2017 {152.67) - - (152.67);
1 Aprid 2016 24730y, - - (297,30
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2018 198.95 - - 198.95
31 March 2017 {300.22) - - (300.22);
1 Aprit 2016 (242.52)| - - (242.52)
Eurasia Publishing House Privale Linoted 31 March 2018 (X} - - 6.4)
31 March 2017 (16.82) - - (1682}
1 April 2016 (170.22) - - £170.22}
Blackic & Son {Calcutta) Private Lintted 3 March 2018 L68 - - 168
3 March 2017 (16.50) - - (16,503}
1 Apsil 2016 (1495) - - (1459
DS Digital Private Limited 31 March 2018 - - -
31 March 2017 - - -
b April 2016 113,99)] - - (13.99)
Smuartivity Labs Privaic Limited 31 March 2088 - 127 - 127
31 March 2087 - (0.04 - (0.04)
t April 2016 - . . .
Hotel Tourist 31 March 2018 - 006 - 006
31 March 2017 - (1.05) - {1.85)
1 Asril 2016 - (0.21)] - £0.21}
Share based payment
Vikas Publishing Bonse Private Limited 31 March 2018 202 - - 202
31 March 2017 126 - - 1.26
1 April 2016 0.50 - - 0.50
Safari Dighal Education Initiatives Private Limited 31 March 218 0.01 - - 041
31 March 2017 068 - - 0.68
t Aprl 2016 945 - - 0.45
New Saraswati House {Inia) Privalg Limited 31 March 2018 0.70 - - 0.7¢
31 March 2017 0.50 - - 0.50
1 April 2016 0.2t - - 9.21
Divectors/KMP remuneration payable . - .
Nirmalz Gupla 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 Marck 20£7 - - - -
1 April 2016 - - (0.10)) (2.10)
Gauray Jhunjlumyala 31 Marck 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - - . -
L April 2016 - - (0.10)) (0.10)
Savila Gupta 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - - - -
1 Aprik 2016 - - (020 {0.20))
Dinesh Kuinar Jaogluiawala 34 March 2018 - - 0.28 0.8
34 March 2017 - . (0.44) 0.49)
. 1 Apdl 2616 . - . (0.30) (0.30)
Himansl Gupla 3 March 2018 - - 0.33 0.38
31 Marcli 2017 - - {042) 040
t April 2016 - . {0.30) (030}
Neera Jhurglmpwata 31 March 2018 - - - .
31 March 2047 - . - ) .
| April 2016 - . (i) (0. 10);
| Ankita Gupla 31 March 2018 - - - -
31 March 2017 - - - .
1 April 2016 - . (8.10)] (6,10)
Saurabls Mitlal 31 March 2018 - - 550 0.80
31 March 2017 - - (047} 0.47)
1 April 2016 - . 097 (0.97)
Jagdeep Singh 31 March 2018 . - 830 0.30
31 March 2017 - - (LaLy (1.81)]
1 April 2016 - - {0.43) 10.43)




§ Chaod zed Company Limited

Netes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
CIN:L22219DL 1970PLCE0SA00

Trade receivable - -
BP} {kdia) Private Hmited 31 Marcl: 2018 15.9% - . 1599
31 March 2017 (15.99), - - {L3.99)
1 April 2016 (15.99) - . (15.99)]
New Saraswati House Private Limnited 31 March 2018 583 - - 58
31 March 2017 (5.78)] - - (5.78)]
§ April 2016 (5.69) - . (5.69)
Safari Digital Education hiligiives Private Limited 31 March 2018 535 - - 535
31 March 2087 (275} - - (2.75)
I Apeil 2016 . . - -
25 Digilal Private Limited 31 March 2018 18.26 - - 18.26
31 March 2017 (18.03)) - - {18.03)
¥ April 20§16 {7625} - - 17625}
(Figures in brackets represents previous year lgures. )

* the fnvestment in dcbentures is o account of conversion of toan given 1o Eurasia atong with the accred intercst,
** The Holding company has given corporate guarantees for the loans 1aken By (e subsidiarics

(This space has been ieft blank intentionaliy}
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S Chand and Company Limited
Notes to financial statement as at March 31, 2018
CIN: L22219DL1970PLCO05400

37,
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Financial Instruments:- Financia! risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables . The main purpese of these financial Habilities is to finance the
Company’s operations. The Company’s principat financial assets include investments in equity shares and government securities, advances to related paty, trade and other
receivables, security deposits, cash and short-terea deposits that derive directly from its eperations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s scnior management oversees the managesient of these risks and advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk govemance framewark for the Company. The board provides assurance to the shaccholders that the Company’s financial
risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identificd, measured and managed in accordance with: the Company's
policies and risk objectives. The Beard of Dircetors reviews and agrees policies for matiaging each of these risks, which are summarised below,

Market Risk

Martket risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises {hree types of risk:-

a.) Interest rate risk,

b.) cumency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and

¢.) commodity risk.

Firancial instraments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, investments, deposits, advances and derivative financial instruments,

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratip of floating to fixed interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the
proporiion of fisancial instruments in foreign curencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2018,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement ebligations; provisions. The sensitivity of
the refevant profit or toss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

Interest rate risk.
Enterest rate risk is the rdsk that the fair vatue or fiture cash flows of a financia} instrument will fluctuate because of changes ity market interest rates, The Conpany’s
exposwre to the risk ef changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's fong-term debt ebligations with fixed interest rates.

The following table demonsteates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changs in intecest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of
hedge acconnting. With all cther variables hefd constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrewings, as follows:

Increase/decrease in Effect on profit Effect on equity

basis points before tax {OCI)
As at 31 Mareh 2018
INR Borrowings 40.50% 2.39 -
-0.50% (259 -
As at 31 March 2017
INR Borrowings H1.50% 10.55 -
-0.50% (19.55) -
As at 1 April 2016
INR Borrowings H).50% 4.15 -
-0.50% {4.15) -

Toreign currency risk

Foreign curency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fuctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s
cxposure to the risk of changes in foreign exclhiange rates relates primarily to the Company’s aperating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a forign
CUNENCY ).

‘Fhe Company does not hedge its foreign cumency exposare, however the sensitivity analysis is given as befew for the for the curencies, in which Company has foreign
exposure;

Changesin foreign  Effect on profit Effect on equity

CuITrency rates before tax (OCT)
For the year ended 31 March 2018
usD +5% 2238 -
-5% (228) -
For the year ended 31 March 2017
UsD +5% 1.50 -
-5% (1.50) -

As at 1 April 2016
USD 193 -

{1.93) -

]




§ Chand and Company Limited
Notes to financial statement as at March 31, 2018
CIN: L22219DL1970PLC00S400

B. Credlt Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its oblgations under a financiaf instnunent or customer contract, leading te & financial Iss, The Company is nol exposed to any
significant credit risk from iis operating activities (primarily trade receivables), icluding deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and ather fizancial
instruments.

The Ageing analysis of trade reecivables (net) as of the reporting date is as follows:

Age Bracket Nt Due 0-215 Days 216-365 Days 365-730 Days Maore than 730 Bays Total

As at | April 2016 1,330.08 173.25 140.87 95.51 41.62 1,781.33
As a1 31 March 2017 1,864.7% 139.94 27.50 48.45 47.88 2,128,58
As at 31 March 2013 2,553.38 283.88 53.13 61356 74.92 3,026,587

C. Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficnlty in miceting the oblipations associated with its financial Fabilities that are seitled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company’s objective s to maintain a balance between continuily of funding and flexibility throngh the use of bank overdrafls, and bauk loans. The company's
approach to manaping liquidity 1o eusure , as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet s Tiability when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurzing unaccepiable losscs or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash menagement
system. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, borrowing liabilities, by centinnously monitoring forecast and zctuat cash flows, profile of financial
assefs and liabilities. 3t maintain adequate sources of financing including loans fom banks at an optimised cost. The table below provides the detnils regarding contractual maturities of
financial liabilitics.

As at Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 | Aprll 2016
On Demand
- Borrowings 507,62 798.83 496,82
507.62 798.83 496.82
Less than 1 year
- Bommowings 5.05 1,302.2¢ 24,86
- Trade payables 1,303.06 900.56 1,073.37
- Other financial liabilities 68006 2002 0.89
1,988.11 2,222.87 1,095.06
More than 1 year
- Borrowings 4.86 3.05 308.36
4.86 805 30836

38, Capitat management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital managemert, capital includes issued cquity capital and ail other equity reserves attributahle 10 the squity helders of the compary. The
primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the sharehoider value,

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advaniages and seourity afforded by a sound
capital position. The primary objective of the company's capital management is to maximise the sharebolder value.

The Company menitors capital using a gearing ratic, which is net debt divided by totaf capilal pius net debt. The Company’s policy is 1o keep the gearing ratio fess than 30%. The
Company measures underlying net debt as tetal Habilities, comprising interest bearing Yoans and borrowings, excluding any dues 1o subsidiaries or group companies loss cash and cash
equivaleats. For the purpose of capital management, total capital includes issued equity equity capital, share premium and ali other reserves aftributabie 1o the equity helders of the
Company, as appHeable,

Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio as ot 31 Marck 2618 is as follow:

Gearlng Ratio Asat Asat Asat
caring Xath 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 I April 2016
Borrowings (Note 12A & 12B} 517,53 2,109.i8 829,98
Less: cash and cash equivalents {Note 5D) (389.30} (143.85) (93.76)
Adjusted Net debt (A) 128.23 1,965.33 736.22
Equity £,600.24 5,018.97 4,742,08
Total equity (B) 8,600.24 5,019.97 4,742.08
Total equify and net debt [C = (A+13)) 8,728.47 6,985.30 5478.30
Gearing Ratio (A/C) 1% 28% 13%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongsi other things, aims 10 ensure that it mests financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in mesting the financial covenants would permit the bank te immediately cail loans and borrowings, There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the comrent petiod,

No changes were made i the objectives, policies or processes for managing eapitat during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

e e
e,

o
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19, Fair Values
Fhe Carrying velues ef Baancial instruments by categories is as under;

Particalars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Amortized Cost  FVTPL  FVTOCI  Awmortized Cost FVTPL _ FVTOCI  Amortlzed Cost FYTPL FYTOCI
Assels
Non carrent flaancial assets
- Invesinients 6,066,956 - - 4,704.06 - - 3,531.57 - -
- Loans 652,31 - - 153.07 - - 18.36 - -
- Other financial assels 858 - - 4.76 - - 4,78 - -
Financial assets
- Trade reccivables 302687 - - 212858 - - 1,781.33 - -
- Loans 7993 - - 26,68 - - 6211 - -
- Investmenis 6406 11236 - - 199 - - 12201 -
- Other financial assels 895 - - 4.61 - - 7.21 - -
- Cash and cash equivalents 33230 - - 143,35 - - 9.76 - -

Non Current Financial Habilities
- Bomowings 4.86 - - 8.05 - - 308,36 - -
- Other financial babilities 65.04 - - 4.92 - - 2.56 - -

Current Financial lisbilities

- Borrowings 507.62 - - 798.83 - - 496.82 - -
- Trade payables 1,303.00 - - 90056 - - 1,073.37 - -
- Other financial Labilities 28.14 651,00 - 132231 - - 2549 - -
The fair valaes of current financiat assets like trade receivables, loans and cash & cash equivalents and carrent financial Tiabilities ke trads payabies and other current finascis! liabilities are

considered to be same as their carrying vahzes due to (heir short term nature.
The camying amounts of other items carried at amontized cost are reascrable approximation of their fair values.

The Company classifies all its financial assets and financial liabilities to be measured at amortized cost, Hence the company has not chssified its financial insmments into three Jevels of fair
value measurement hierarchy in accordance with the relevant accounting standards

‘The fair value measutement of eam-out consideration is determined using Level 3 inputs. The Company’s eam-out consideration represents a component of the total purchase consideration
for its acquisition of Chhaya Peakasheni Private Limited. The measurement is caleulated using unobservable inputs based on the Company’s own it of achi of certain
performance goals by Chhiaya Prakashani Private Limited. The Company estimated the fair value of the cam-owl consideration to be ¥ 657 million, based on agreed method of computation,

{This space has been left intentionaily)

o~
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40, Th: Congany has filed Hrafl Conposile Scheme of Armangement on Jamary 9, 2018, amongst Blackie & Sons {Calcut) Private Limited, Nirja Publislers and Prirters Private Liiled, DS Digital Privete Lindtod {"DS Digiat™), Safari
Digital Educatior bnitiatives Privale Limited {"Safiri Ipita)”) and 5 Chard end Company Limited (Company) and their respeclive shareholders and credilors (Compasita Scheme) with BSE Limited (BSET} and Nations! Stock Exchange of
India Limiled {NSEY) under Regulation 37 of the SEDL{Listing Obligations and Disclosue Requircmemis) and Clrolar wo, CFD/DILYCIRVIEIT/2] dated March 10, 2017 {"SEBI Cintular). The eduction Busitess of DS Digital and Safati
Digital shall be deuneged from respective Comparnies and will be merged with the Company as part of Scheas: of Arrangement. The Company shall file the Scheme with Nationat Company Law Tritumal (NCE:T), post approval Fom BSE and
HSE.

41. Corporate Saclsl Rexponsitility

uring the year, the Company has cotributed T 1.82 piilion (31 March 2017: ¥ 2.72 milliony ow of the totat covtributzble amourd of 2 5.34 million (31 March 2017: ¥ 3,44 aillion) in accordance wilh section 135 read with sebedule VO 1o
the Comparies Act, 2013 fimaugh varians trests and donation ol books. Manugemment s not spenl ihe remaining amoust of {31 March 2017: T 072 milliony a5 CSR commiltoe is yel to identify the activity,

42, Segen reporting
Ind AS 108 estoblishes stuslands for the way thal conpanies teport information about operaling sepncrés and related disclosures obo products and services and major custoiners. The Company’s operations pre-domimanty relue f

publishing o books, The Clief Opemiing Docision Maker (CODM) evuliotes the Conpany's performane and allocates resolirees based enanalysis of various performance inficaiors pértaining o bisiness as n single segment Accordingly,
Ihe amounts appearing in the financial slatemomis relate i the Congxmy”s single business sepment.

43. Dues to Micro, sinalt and medivum enterprises ns defiied inder the MSMED Act, 2006

Darticulars Asnt Asat Asat
31 Merch 2018 31 March 2017 ¥ April 2015

The principal ematat and ihe doterest diss thereon (1o be sbown separately) renuaining ampaid & any spplier 25 i U end oCeachaccounting year

Principal amomt duc 1o miceo and small emerprises 6.57 245 118
eerest due onahove 4 0.01 001
6.61 2,50 1,19

‘Ihe amourd of interest patd by the buyer in l2ims of seciion 16 0 (e MSMED Acl 2006 aloag wilh the amownts of e paymend made (0 the supplier beyond the
zppainted day during each accomting year

The amoud of nterest due 2l payable for the period ol dilay fn making psyment (which bave born paid but beyond [ appoiated day during the year) b N . _
without adding the interest specificd inder the MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interesl acenued and remaining wipaid at (e end of each accousting year 0.04 0.01 0.1

“The amownt of Rther interest remaining dus and payable cven in the succeeding years, wiil such date when ibe itercs) dues ps above are actaliy paid o the

small enterprise for e pup Td as adeduchibl itvre wider seclion 23 of the MSAED Acl 2006 - -
44, Tnported aid T rany materlaly, and spare parts
Raw Materlals Tniported Tndigenomsly obtalied
Percenlage (%) (Awwunt In T} Perceatage (%) (Amount kT
Asai 21 March 2018 [I5] - 100% 1,251.01
Asal 3| March 2617 0% - 100% 10830
45, Dhclosurt regidred under Sec 186(4) of the Compandes Act 2003
Inciuded inJoans and advance are cerwinJoans the particulars ol which are discloscd below as
Nawe of the loas Rateoffuterestf S MGnb 2018 3 MexBI0LT E AR 2086
Due Date unsegired
Safird Digital Education Inftiatives Private Limited 10.75%-12% pa 3 years Hrscvired 84.56 19.31 1743
13 8 Digital Privak Limited 10.75% pa 3 years Usecured 43.64 . .
Ewrasia Publishing House Privaie Lindled 12% pa 3 yoars Unsevared - 113.42 -
. 95.11.25%%
New Saraswati House (Tndia) Private Limited ;2'75 %-11.25% 3 years Urnsectrad 2878 -
Yikas Publishing Howse Private Limited 1N.25% pa 3 years (seerred 454.51 - -
8 Chand Edvioch Private Limited 10.75% pa 3 years Unseowed 20469 - -

46 Infornution about mafor customers

Reveme fom | oujor cusiomers amomted to T 777 98 milkion aggrepatios b 20.68%5 of lolal reveme {3 March 2017 248,55 willion aggregating fo 14.19% of ot novermae)

47 T Company ad made an i in 4190 eptionally ib deb of { IH0,800 cach fully patd in Waldorf Intcgration: Solutions Limited (farmerly Cityxys Techuologics Limiled) during the Smncial year 2007-08 as
er the debenre subscriplion agrecuncnt dated T4 May 2007, The debeatres were comvertad inte 512,500 oplomily convertible or redecmable preference shares during the fnancial year 200809 as per the debentime comversion apreement
dated 03 March 2009, These preforence sharcs were redemable of comverfible &1 the option of the sharcholder 25 per the debeture i The pref shares were dwe for i fon dising the firateial
year 2011-12 and the Conpany opled for redermplion of preference shares which the Waldorf Inlegretion Solufions Limited {forme:]y Cityxys Technologies Liniited) faited and dz@ulled iu rederming the preference shams, The Cormpany had
fled a casy against Waldot( Integration Selutions Limited (formerly Cilyxys Tochnalogies Linited) I ion of the pref shares held by U Cetguany and on March 28, 2018, the Hon'bls Arbitral Tribmm), awarded the
ecase in favoir of the Conpany. The suitgoment In consuftation with lawyers, has reversed the impairment of T 41 million made in carlier yars 2nd recogrised (e Lnvestment at fir value of € £4 million in the ciment financial year,

8 Caplisl and other

Asat Asat Asal
31 Machi 2018 31 Mearch 2017 1 Aprit 2015

a. Capita} commitmen (et of advance) 7433 009 14.70
b For relating & Jease please refer nofg 34

(.
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49 Conlingent lisbiities

Asag Asat Asat
1 March 2018 31 Merch 2017 1 April 2046

Compontle guarantec {refer note "' below) 1,205.00 1,748,382 1LO05LIB
Stamp duty (refer note ' below} 95.01 9501 950
Registration = (refer ot P belew) 915 a5 -

icome Tax demond (refer note ‘e and 'F below) 0.67 0.67 .57

3 Corporsle puaraniee isclides purantees given by the Company b banks and Buatcial instibtions against loans Lk by the subsidiaties and assoclates,

b Duisg the yvar 2033-16, (he Conpany received notice under Iidlan Stangs Act, 1399 for sor-paymTd of stamp duty ow transfer of property on anwlpamntion and demerger held in Lo Gnsncial year 2051-12. The district registrar coutented
Ut enler of Hon'ble 1igh Court fbr smlgamation and demerper docs not grants exzmplion in respect ol payment of statp duly.

Tl Company has also teceived a demand notice Fom 02 Sub-Registrar wxder section B0A of e Repistration Act, 1508 whercin the awhority has directed (he Company to pay additional registration fee of 2 9.15 million {3) March 2017
2.15 wiilicnand ) April 2016: ¢ Nil}

As per the legat opinion obisined, mmpemnent is of the view that oo liakility would accruoe on the Company on accown of suck case, Accordingly, v provision has besn made in e Books of account for the same.

¢ Itrespecl of Assessmenl Year 2006-2007, demand was 12ised due to disallowance of earain expunses mder section 34A of (e Frome Tex Act and atso certaia prralty prcesdings oo the above issue, The matier is pemling with the
Assesslng officer. The amount iinvelved Is 2 067 million (31 Mazch 2007; € 0,67 million and 1 April 2016; ¥ 5,68 niillion).

d  Inrespectof A Year 2015-16 2 disallowance vnder scztion 36(1)(vn rend with section A 24)x) of the set, a demand has been 9ised on accouw of di f payment made towards soyployee’s tbution b EY after the doe
date ol payment bua before (e dus dote of iHfing relwn. The matter is pending with CTHA). The amount involved is % 0,72 mittion

5

&

. Standard haued bl oot yet edfeetive
Ind AS 115 was motificd on 28 March 2018 aid establishes a five-slep modal io account Br revenue &7ising Fom contracks with customers, Under Ind AS 1 15, revenn: s recognised at an amounl that reftects the considiration 1o which an
enlity expects la be enfilled in exchange for trawskazing poods or services 10 a costomer, The rew revem: standard will suprrsede all eared revems recoguition requirements under iad AS. Bither 2 fll retrospective application or
wodified retrospective applicatfon is requited or anmul periods bepinming on or afier | April 2018, The Company will adopt e rew standand on the required efRective dale wsing the nodified retrospestive mebod. The Conpany has
established an implemeniation toam (o implement Iid AS 113 refated lo B recopnifion of revense foin contracts with customers and it contirmss 1o evalite to clunges to accounling sysiem and processes, and additioml disclosure

requirements (st any be novessary. A teBable estimale ofthe quantitative inpact of Ind AS 115 onthe finweial stalements will anly be possible once the inysl ion project has by eted
Ly 'y e po: gy

Angndiie kts to Ind 112 Disclosure af hnlereals in Gther Entities; Clarification of the scope of disclosure requirements ju fnd AS 112
The d clazify Bt the discl i inlnd AS 112, other than tose in paragraphs B10-BI6, epply to an entity’s inlerest ina subsidiary, a jeint venture of an assoginte (or & portionof ils interest in & joint venture or an
associate) thal is classifled {or inctuded ina disposal group that is classified) as held for sale,

A i to Ind AS 12 RecogaRtion of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised 1osses

The amendments clarify (hat an entity noeds to consider whetler tax law restricts the sources of Lixable proilts apsist which il may make deductions o the reversal of bt deducBhble femporary dilference. Furthormore, the amendiments.
provide guidance on how an enlity shoutd determsine future lxable profits and explain the cireuwnslinces inwhich axable profil may includa he recovery of some assets for more than heir carcying amow.

Eutitics arc roquired 0 apply e anxadmenls retrospeclively. However, on imitia} application of (o amendments, the clange in thy opening equity of the carliest corparative period myy be recognised in epeoing retained earnings {or in
anoir companid of equity, a8 appropriate), withow allocating the change behween openiig retained earmings and oller componenls of oquity. Firtities applying this relief mast disclose Il fach.

These amendmerds are effective for aumnt periods beginning o or after | Aprit 2018, These anxndmnls are nol expected 1o kave any impact on (he Company as the Company has 1o deduetible temporary diffezenices or assels fat are in e
scope oftle amendmens,

Appendix B to 13d AS 21 Foreign Cuzrency Tramactions sod Advance Consldtration

Tl Appendix clarifies that, i determining the spot exchange ratc o use on initial recognition of the relatad assat, expense or invome {or part of i1} on the d ition ofa lary assel or tary Rability relaling to advance
! tom, (he date ol e ionis the date onwhich an cxtity inftially ises e assel or norronctary liability arising Gom the advance consideration. I thire are muldple payiets or reccipts inadvance, en e

culity messt dotermine the Uarsaction date for each payment or reeciplof advance consideration

Eutitics may apply e Appendix requicmens on a Rilly retrospeetive basis, Allemasively, an eality rmay apply these requiremints prospectively 1o 81 assets, cxproses and inconie in ils scopy (hat are inftially secoprised on or after:

(i) The begimming of the reporiing period in which the entity first applics the Appendix, or

(i} The beginming of a prier reporting period presented as ive fon inthe fuancial of the reparting period nwhich the entity Bt applics the Appendix.

e Appendix iz elfective for el periods beginming on or alter 1 April 2018. However, since the Company's certent practice is in ino wilh the Interpretiation, the Company does nol expecl any cffect on ls fincinl slatemeniz.

Chaigges in sccounting poicles and disclasures

New and emended standands aid foterpre tatlons

The Cempany applicd for the Brst e cerlain amendments to B standards, which are elfective fr amasd periods bregiting on or afler | Apri 2017, The e and B impact of each smendmen| is Gescribed Mlow:
Amendimenty to Iod AS 7 Sletement of Cash Floves; Discloaure Taltlalbve

The amendmenls require enfitles (o provide disclosw of changes in their liabilitics arising fom finaixlag actisitics, inchuding both ehianges arising Fom cash fows and non-cash changes (swh as Treign eschange paits or losses), The
Company has provided the infarmalion Rr both (e ewrent and the conparative perind In Cash Flow StatemenL

A dme nts to Ind AS 102 Class] aod My of Share-based Fayoent Tramuactions

The smerdinezes ko Ind AS 192 Share-based Payment addresses three main areas: ths effcts of vesting conditions onthe measarencn of a cash-selted share-based paynx transacti
with nel seltfemcnd Feaboes for witkholding lax obligatiors; and accowting whers a modificalfon (o e ters and conditions ofa share-based paymamd o1 ¢Liuisges its classGca

; e classilication of'a share-Based payment tramsaction
lion ftom cash settled 1o equity setttad. /
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51. Fint-time odoptlonof Ind AS

3) Tlese Smncial statements, for the year ended 31 harch 2018, are the first the Company s prepared in accordan:e with nd AS. For periods vp lo and inchuding the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its funcial statemonts
in accordamee with accomting standards potified under section 133 ol the Conpanics Act 2013, read logether with paragraph 7 of the Companles (Accowis} Rules, 2014 (Previous UAAP). Accordingly, e Company has prepared financial
stalemeats which comply with Tnd A5 epplicable for periods ending on 31 March 2018, iopether with the comparative perlod data 25 at and for the year ewded 31 March 2017, a5 described in the summany of signifleant accounding poticies, In
preparing these financial stalements, U Congamy's opening halance sheet was preparcd as at | April 2016, the Congany™s date of lansition o Ind AS.

Tlis pole explains excmpfiors avaited by tl Company in restating its Previous GAAP Smancial statements, including the balance sheetasat § April 2016 and ihe Bnancial statenients as al and for the yvar ended 31 March 2017,

Cplional Exemsptions Applicd:
Iixd AR 101 allows first-imz adopters cerlain oy ions from the pective application of certain requl wder In3 AS, The Company has applis the following exenptions,

a,) Ekenied cost of Property, pant and equlpie nt nod Entengible asseta
Ind AS 10} pemils a frsl-time adopter, where thire is po change In fimctiorst currency, (0 elect 1o conting with the carryitg vatoe for alt of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial stalzments as at e dale ol
frausition lo Ind AS, masured as per whe previous OAAP and use that 25 15 deemed cost as al the date of trensiffion after maklig oecessary adjustments for de-conmissioning liabitiies. This exengition can alse be wsed for intangitle asscls
coverad by Ind AS 38 Itanziblg Assels.
Accordingly, the conpuny Bas clovtod to measire al? ofits property, plant and equipmenl aud intangible assels at their previows JAAP carrying value,

b) Emestmenls in subsldiarkes*
As per the requirements of Ind AS 27, conipany bes opted 10 Tecord ils investment in subsidiary at cost, Ind AS 101 provides that while measuring Divestinnt at cost, an entity shatt measure tal fmvestment at ene of the bllowinsg amows in its
sepanale opening ul AS Hatanca Sheet:
() cost deternensd id accordance with [nd AS 27;0r
{i1) deeived vost. The decmad cosl of such an imvestmend shall be ts:-
() fai; value ol the ertity's dete of transilion to Ind ASs inits separate finoncind slatements, or
{b) previons GAAT carrying amownl al that date.
Accordiigly, conpany has opted to record its investmonl in subsidiary at previous GAAP camylog amow at ransiion date,
{*Tawestmen I subsidiarics inchudes imestnnd in subsidiary of olding conpaiy}

) Share based paymwnts
hii AS 102 Share based paymient s vol bece applied 1o equily instruments in share based payment ransactions (hat vested before the the date of Imnsilion

4.} Business Combination
Tl Compary his clected not to apply Iad AS 103 retrospectively to past bustoess imations i, o business combimbons thal eccurred before e date of ransition to knd AS.

i) Reconcillallons
Fallowing reconciliations along with ool notes Gr the GAAY adjustets is inserted:
- Reconcitiation ol equily as al 1 April 2016 {the dale oCtransition t Ind AS) (Atwexnre T)
- Reconciliation of equity as a1 31 March 2017 {Ausexure Ha)
- Reconcilistion of profit #nd Joss for year ended 3t March 2017 ¢Anne xure I}




S Chand and Company Limited
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2018
CIN; L22219DL1979PLC0OO5400

Annexure I - Reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2016 (ihe date of transition to Tnd AS)

(¥ in millions)
Particulars Foot notes Indian GAAP*  Ind AS Adj Ind AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 140,32 - 140,32
Intangible assets 115.94 - 115.94
Capital work in progress 0.10 - 0.10
Financial assets
- Investments 1 3,530.41 1.16 3,531,57
- Loans 3 33.96 (15.60) £8.36
- Other financial assets 478 - 4,78
Cther non-current assets 3 48,20 11.08 59.28
Deferred tax assets (net) 7 10.89 51.37 62.26
Total nan-corrent assets 3,884.60 48.01 3,932.61
Current assets
Inventories 596.25 24,34 620.59
Financial assets
- Investments 1 162.31 (40.30} 122.01
- Loans 3 162,11 - 162.11
- Trade receivables 5 1,913,818 (132.48) £,781.33
- Cash and cash equivalents 93,76 - 93.76
- Other financial assets 721 - 7.21
Other current assets 3 34.82 2.53 37.35
Total current assets 2,970.27 (145.91) 2,824.36
Total assets 6,854.87 (27.90) 6,756.97
Equity and linhilities
Equity
Equity share capital 2.02 - 202
Other equity
- Refained ecamings 1,193.39 (100.34) 1,093.05
- Other reserves 2 3,644.57 244 3,647.01
Fotal equity 4,839.98 (97.90) 4,742,08

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 308.36 - 308.36
- Qther financial liabilities - - -

Net employee defined benefit liabilities 7.68 - 7.68
Other non-current lizbilities 2.56 - 2,56
Total non current liabilities 318.60 - 318,60
Current Habilitics

Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 496,82 - 496.82
- Trade payables 1,073.37 - £,073.37
- Other financial liabilities 25.69 - 25.69
Other current liabilities 51,22 - 51.22
Other provisions 49.19 - 49.19
Tatal current liabilities 1,696.29 - 1,696,29
Total equity and liabilities 6,854,87 (97.90} 6,756.97

(*indian Gaap numbers have been regrouped to conforn to classifications as per Ind AS)
o




§ Chand and Company Limited
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2018
CIN; L22219DLI976PLC0O05400

Annexure Ia - Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2017

(¥ in millions)
Particulars Troot notes Indian GAAP* Ind AS Adj Ind AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 111.70 - 111,70
Intangible assets 4 138.24 749 145.73
Capital work in progress - - -
Financial assets
- Investmenis 1 4,700,406 3.60 4,704.06
- Loans 3 167.05 (13.98) 153.07
- Other financial assets 4.76 - 4.76
Other non-current assels 3 18.94 8.50 2744
Deferred fax assets (net) 7 20.17 48,94 69.11
Total non-current assets 5,161.32 54.55 5,215.87
Current assets
Inventories 52755 49,54 577.09
Financial assets
- Investinents 1 42,72 {40,783 1.94
- Loans 3 26.06 0.62 26.68
- Trade receivables 5 228625 (157.67) 2,128.58
- Cash and cash equivalents 143 85 - 143,85
- Onther financial assets 4.61 - 4,61
Other current assets 3 132.44 2.56 135.00
Total current assets 3,163.48 (145.73) 3,017.75
‘Total assets §,324.80 91.18) 8,233.62
Equity and liabititics
Equity
LEquity share capital 145.22 - o 149.22
Other equity
- Retained earnings 1,452.24 (98.83) 1,353.41
- Other reserves 2 3,509.69 7.65 3,517.34
Total equity 5111,15 (91.18) 5,019.97
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 8.05 - 8.05
- Other financial liabilities - - -
Net employee defined benefit liabilitics 8.46 - 8.46
Other non-current liabilities 4.92 - 4.92
Total non current liabilities 21.43 - 21.43
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 798.83 - 798.83
- Trade payables 900,56 . 900.56
- Other financial liabilities 1,322.31 - 1,322,31
Other current liabilities 60,29 - 60.29
Other provisions 110.23 - 110,23
Total current liabilities 3,192.22 - 3,192.22
Total equity and liabilites 8,324.80 (1.18) 8,233.62
(*Indiar Gaap munbers have been regrouped fo conform to classifications as per Ind AS) é’g

| s
H /




$ Chand and Company Limited
Notes to financial statenient as at 31 March 2018
CIN: L22219DL1970PLC005400

Anuexure TTh - Reconeiliation of profit and loss for year ended 31 March 2017

(% in illions)

Particulars Foot notes indian GAAP Ind AS Adj Ind AS
1 Revenue from Operations 3,013,50 (87.48) 2.926.02
I Qther Income 1 91,63 §.86 93.49
T Total Income (I+11} 3,105.13 (85.62) 3,019.51
IV Expenses
Cost of published goods/materials consumed 1,013.41 - 1,013.41
Purchases of traded poods 52.52 - 52,52
(Increase)/decseasc in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 12.82 (49.54) 23.28
Publication expenses . 317.90 - Al7.00
Selling and distribution expenses 244,33 (37.54) 206,39
Emnployee benefits expense 6 478.69 118 488.27
Finance cost 149,05 - 149.05
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 72,62 (1.49) 65.13
Other expenses 3 271.08 2.66 27374
Total expenses 2,670,92 {89.13) 2,581.79
V Profit/{foss) before tax (FII-IV} 434,21 3.51 43172
V1 Tax expense:
Curent tax 171.00 171.00
Income fax adjustinent refated to earlier years 150 1.50
Defened tax (credit)/ charge 7 (9.27) 2.28 (6.99)
Taotal tax expenses 163.23 228 165,51
VII Profit for the period 276.98 1.23 272.21

VUI Other Comprehensive Income

- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 7
Re-measurement gains/(fosses) on defined benefit plans - 042 042
Tax finpact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans - (0.15) {0.15)
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII + VIII) 270,98 1.50 172,48

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 and profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2(H7 are as below:~

51,

. Under previcns GAAP, quoted equity investnents and mutval funds were valued at lower of cost and fair value, Under Ind AS, these financial asseis have been classified as FVTPL

on the date of iransition and fair value changes after the date of iransition has been recognized in the statenent of profit and loss,

. Under previous GAAP, the Company was accounting employee stock option plans as per infrinsic value methad. Under Ind AS, these have been accounted for at fair value as per

Ind AS 102. Further, compensation cost of options granted to employees of subsidiary companies bave been capitalized with the cost of investments in such subsidiary companies as
per Ind AS 102,

. Under previous GAAP, security deposits givea by the Company against Jease agreements for office premiscs at various lecations were measured at transaction value ignoring the

time value of tnoney. Under Ind AS, these deposits were considered as finaneiz] assets and has been valued at amortised cost.

. Under previons GAAP, goodwill was amortised on straiglt line basis over a period of E0 years. Under Ind AS, Goodwilt is required 1o be tesied for impainuent at each reporting

date, hence, amount of amertisation made for goodwill under IGAAP lias been reversed in the statement of profit and loss or retained carnining.

. Under previous GAAP, provision was being made on financial assets on ineurred loss model. Under Ind AS, provision on fimancial assets is required 1o be 1ade as per expected

credit loss model considering the expected cash shorifalls from such financial assets and delay in cxpected realization from such financiak assets.

Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to statement of profit and loss, Under Ind-AS, re-measurcincnts comprising of actuarial gains
and losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCE

Under Indian GAAT, deferred tax was accounted using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and acceunting profits for the period.
Under Ind AS, entities need to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences befween the carrying amount of an asset or
Hahility in the balance sheet and its tax base.

Previous perind figures
Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necossary, to conform 1o this year's classification.

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repert of even date

For 5.R, Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on belialf of fhie Board of Directors of
YCAI Firm Registration No, 101049W / E300004 ny Lifmited
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